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Offering Memorandum dated May 5, 2021

ONE ROQ Spirits LLC
430 Virginia Street, Ste 401
Buffalo, NY 14201
www.onerogclub.com

A Recission Offer for 624,111 Membership Units

ONE ROQ Spirits LLC (the "Company," “we,” or “us”), is offering to repurchase 624,111
Membership Units from investors who purchased our Membership Units during our offering
under Regulation Crowdfunding (“Regulation CF”) of the Securities Act of 1933
(“Securities Act”), as amended, on startengine.com from August 19, 2020, through February
24,2021, (the “Rescission Offer”). The repurchase price will be the amount of your
investment, $0.43 per Membership Unit, not including Bonus Units, plus interest at the
current statutory rate. Certain investors were eligible for Bonus Units depending on when
they purchased their Membership Units and their eligibility to receive Bonus Units through
the StartEngine OWNer’s Bonus program. Because these Bonus Units were received in
addition to the Membership Units purchased, if you accept this Rescission Offer you will be
refunded the amount you invested and will forfeit the Bonus Units. Investors also received
perks in the form of Privileges of the Club and shopping credit at ONEROQCIlub.com based
on 10% of the amount invested (altogether, the “Perks”). Investors who accept this
Rescission Offer will be required to forfeit their Perks, including any unused shopping
credits at ONEROQCIub.com, and will not receive any consideration other than the return of
their investment plus applicable statutory interest. For example:

MEMBERSHIP UNITS, BONUS UNITS AND PERKS*

» Investors who purchased Membership Units during the Friends and Family period
were eligible to receive an additional 115% bonus units. The Friends and Family
period was the 72-hour period commencing 9 a.m. PT on August 19, 2020, and
ending 8:59 a.m. PT on August 22, 2020.

0 An investor who purchased 233 Membership Units during the Friends and
Family period will receive $100.19 plus interest at the current statutory
rate. The investor will also forfeit the 34 Bonus Units received because
they invested during the Friends and Family period, plus all Privileges of
the Club and any unused shopping credits (Perks).

* Investors who purchased Membership Units during the Super Early Bird period
were eligible to receive an additional 110% bonus units. The Super Early Bird
period began 9 a.m. PT on August 22, 2020, and ended 8:59 a.m. PT on August
25, 2020.

0 An investor who purchased 233 Membership Units during the Super Early
Bird period will receive $100.19 plus interest at the current statutory rate.
The investor will also forfeit the 23 Bonus Units received because they
invested during the Super Early Bird period, plus all Privileges of the
Club and any unused shopping credits (Perks).



e Investors who purchased Membership Units during the Early Bird period were
eligible to receive an additional 105% bonus units. The Early Bird period began 9
a.m. PT on August 25, 2020, and ended 8:59 a.m. PT on September 1, 2020.

0 An investor who purchased 233 Membership Units during the Early Bird
period will receive $100.19 plus interest at the current statutory rate. The
investor will also forfeit the 11 Bonus Units received because they
invested during the Early Bird period, plus all Privileges of the Club and
any unused shopping credits (Perks).

» Investors who were members of the StartEngine OWNer’s Bonus program were
eligible to receive an additional 10% Bonus Units.

o A member of the OWNer’s Bonus program who purchased 233
Membership Units will receive $100.19 plus interest at the current
statutory rate. The investor will also forfeit the 23 Bonus Units they
received, plus all Privileges of the Club and any unused shopping credits
(Perks).

*Under the terms of the offering, investors were permitted to receive one discount and, if
eligible for more than one discount, they would receive the higher discount.

The interest applied will be the current statutory rate, which varies from state to state and is
set out at page 26. See “Rescission Offer and Price — Statutory Interest.” This Rescission
Offer will remain open from May 3rd, 2021, until the expiration of this offer on June 3,
2021. Details of the Recission Offer are available at
S //WWW.S ine.c log/on -ICISCISSi

Background

Beginning August 19, 2020, the Company has been engaged in an offering of its
Membership Units under the exemption Regulation CF of the Securities Act (the “CF
Offering”) through the StartEngine Capital LLC platform (the “StartEngine platform™). The
CF Offering 1s continuing concurrently with this Rescission Offer. The Company’s Offering
Memorandum, which was made available to investors who purchased Membership Units in
the Company’s CF Offering between August 19, 2020, through February 24, 2021, contained
financial statements that had been reviewed rather than audited. You have received this
Rescission Offer because our records show that you purchased Membership Units during the
period when reviewed financial statements were included in our Offering Memorandum,
which was filed as a Form C with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 19,
2020. For more detail see “Rescission Offer — Background,” below.

As a result of this error, the Company may not have complied with the disclosure
requirements of Rule 201 of Regulation CF and Section 4A(b)(1) of the Securities Act of
1933 (“Securities Act”), as amended, and, if a violation, may give rise to rescission rights
under Section 4A(c)(1)(a) of the Securities Act. Consequently, we are offering investors
who participated in our 2020 CF Offering on the StartEngine platform between August 19,
2020, and February 24, 2021, the opportunity to rescind (reverse) the transactions that
occurred during the offering periods described above. Purchasers of our Membership Units,
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and any Bonus Units, who accept this rescission offer will receive funds commensurate with
the original amount of their investment in the CF Offering, plus statutory interest, in their
StartEngine Investment Account, which they can transfer to their own bank account or use to
invest in offerings made through the StartEngine platform. Investors who accept this
rescission offer will not be allowed to keep the Bonus Units or Perks they received when
they participated in our offering of Membership Units.

The Offering Memorandum for the Company’s ongoing CF Offering, and the Offering
Memorandum for this Rescission Offer, both include the Company’s audited financial
statements.

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering
unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer
and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These securities have not
been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory
authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of
this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any securities
offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any
offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination that these securities
are exempt from registration.

This disclosure document contains forward-looking statements and information relating to,
among other things, the Company, its business plan and strategy, and its industry. These
forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs of, assumptions made by, and information
currently available to the Company’s management. When used in this disclosure document and
the Company offering materials, the words “estimate”, “project”, “believe”, “anticipate”,
“intend”, “expect”, and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements reflect management’s current views with respect to future events
and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause the Company’s action results to
differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements. Investors are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements to reflect events or
circumstances after such state or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THIS RESCISSION OFFER

You should read the following questions and answers, together with the more detailed
information regarding the rescission offer and the risk factors set forth elsewhere in this
offering memorandum, before deciding whether to accept or reject the rescission offer.

Q: Why are we making the Rescission Offer?

A:  Under Regulation Crowdfunding of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Regulation CF”), we are required to have an offering memorandum on file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) that provides the disclosure
required by Rule 201 of Regulation CF. Our offering memorandum, which was filed with the
Commission as part of the Company’s Form C on August 19, 2020, was posted on the
StartEngine Primary LLC platform (the “StartEngine platform”) and delivered to investors in
connection with the Company’s offering made under Regulation CF (the “CF Offering”). In
that offering memorandum, the Company included financial statements that had been
reviewed rather than audited. For greater detail regarding the Company’s disclosure, see
“Rescission Offer — Background.” As a result, our offering memorandum may have failed to
meet the disclosure requirements of Rule 201 of Regulation CF and Section 4A(b)(1) of the
Securities Act and, if a violation, may give rise to rescission rights under Section 4A(c)(1)(a)
of the Securities Act. For this reason, the Company has decided to offer investors who
participated in our CF Offering between August 19, 2020 and February 24, 2021, on the
StartEngine platform an opportunity to rescind (reverse) their Membership Units purchase
transactions.

Q: Which Membership Units are included in the Rescission Offer?

A:  We are offering, upon the terms and conditions described in this offering memorandum,
to rescind purchases of our Membership Units made on the StartEngine platform during our
offering made in reliance on Regulation CF, during the period from August 19, 2020,
through February 24, 2021. The 624,111 Membership Units, excluding Bonus Units, were
purchased by 715 people as a result of their making purchase transactions on the StartEngine
platform.

Q: How much did I pay for the Membership Units included in the Rescission Offer?

A: The Company offered its Membership Units for a purchase price of $0.43 per unit.
Some investors were eligible to receive Bonus Units depending on when they purchased
their Membership Units during the Friends and Family period, the Super Early Bird period,
or the Early Bird offering period. Certain investors may also have had the option to receive
Bonus Units through the StartEngine OWNer’s Bonus program. Investors were only allowed
to participate in one of the programs offering Bonus Units. Because the Bonus Units were
provided to purchasers based on the timing of their purchase, and not for consideration, the
Company will only repurchase the Membership Units that investors purchased. As part of
this Rescission Offer, investors who rescind their purchase of Membership Units will also
forfeit their Bonus Units. Accordingly, investors who rescind their purchase of the
Company’s Membership Units will receive the amount they paid upon investment plus
interest at the current statutory rate.



Q: Is the amount I receive for my Membership Units in the Rescission Offer taxable?

A:  We are not qualified to give tax advice. Each person’s tax situation is different. We
recommend you consult your tax advisor prior to accepting our offer.

Q: What will I receive if I accept the Rescission Offer?

A:  We will place funds in your StartEngine Investment Account equal to $0.43 per
Membership Unit that you purchased, not including Bonus Units, plus interest at the current
statutory rate per year, from the date your Membership Unit purchase was issued through the
date this Rescission Offer expires. After you provide us with your mailing address, full
name, and social security number we will provide you with the amount of interest that will
be included in the amount deposited in your StartEngine Investment Account. You may
transfer any funds deposited into your StartEngine Investment Account as a result of
accepting this Rescission Offer to your own bank account. Please see the next question for a
specific example.

Q: Can you give me an example of what I will receive if I accept the Rescission
Offer?

A: If you purchased 233 Membership Units on August 19, 2020, we will deposit funds into
your StartEngine Investment Account for $100.19 plus interest at the current statutory rate in
the state in which you reside. If you participate in the StartEngine OWNer’s program and
purchased 233 Membership Units on August 19, 2020, we will deposit funds into your
StartEngine Investment Account for $100.19, plus interest at the current statutory rate in the
state in which you reside. You will not receive funds for the Bonus Units you received in
connection with your investment because no consideration was paid. Once funds have been
deposited into your StartEngine Investment Account after accepting this Rescission Offer,
you may transfer those particular funds to your own bank account or choose to invest those
funds in the offerings on the StartEngine platform. See also “Rescission Offer and Rights of
the Securities of the Company — Table of Interest Rates.”

Q: Why can’t you tell me how much interest I would earn if I accept the Rescission
Offer?

A:  The statutory interest rate is determined by your state of residence. You are not
required to provide your address until you fully accept our terms and conditions. Statutory
interest rates for each state are set forth in “Rescission Offer and Rights of the Securities of
the Company - Table of Interest Rates.”

Q: IfI accept the Rescission Offer, what happens to my Perks?

A: The Company’s CF Offering included investment incentives in the form of membership
in the Company’s Club based on the amount invested. All investors received 10% shopping
credits at ONEROQCIub.com based on the amount invested. Investors also received
membership in the Company’s Club based on the amount invested. For example, investors
who purchased between $100-S449 of Membership Units received Silver Membership. For
more information regarding Club memberships see the next question below. If you accept
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the Rescission Offer you will also forfeit each of those Perks, including any unused shopping
credits.

Q: Did I receive a Perk when I purchased my Membership Units?

A: The Company offered Perks to investors based on the amount of their investment. All
investors received shopping credits at ONEROQClub.com equivalent to 10% of the amount
of their investment. For example, an investor who purchased $1,000 in Membership Units
also received $100 in shopping credits for use on ONEROQCIub.com. Additionally,
investors received memberships in the Company’s Club based on the amount of their
investment:

Silver Membership privileges for investing between $100 -- $449;
Gold Membership privileges for investing between $450 -- $2,449; and
Black Membership privileges for investing $2,500 or more.

If you accept this Rescission Offer, you will also forfeit your Perks, including any unused
shopping credits. You will also be removed from the Company’s Club memberships and will
lose related privileges.

Q: What information do I have to provide to accept this offer?

A:  You will provide us with a verifiable name, address, and social security number, as is
required to allow us to perform KYC (know your customer) and AML (anti-money
laundering) checks. Additionally, you must execute the election agreement.

Q: When is it reasonable to consider this offer?

A:  We think it 1s reasonable for every affected investor who purchased ONE ROQ Spirits
Membership Units to consider this offer. We cannot give advice as to whether or not you
should buy or sell the Company’s Membership Units, so we cannot give you an opinion as to
whether or not someone in your particular situation should accept this offer. We do not know
if the price of the Membership Units covered by this offer will go up or down. We do not
know your particular tax situation. We can help you with the math. In a separate but
concurrent offering, the Company is actively selling its Membership Units at $0.43 per
Membership Unit, and actively awarding Bonus Units and Perks to investors based upon
amount of investment.

There 1s no formal marketplace for the resale of the Company’s Membership Units and the
Company currently has no plans to list any of its Membership Units on any over-the-counter
(OTC), or similar exchange. These securities are illiquid and there will not be an official
current price for them as there would be if the Company were a publicly-traded company
with a listing on a stock exchange. Investors should assume that they may not be able to
liquidate their investment for some time or be able to pledge their Membership Units as
collateral. Since the Company has not established a trading forum for the Membership Units,
there will be no easy way to know what the Membership Units are “worth” at any time or
even to sell it.



We are offering to reverse (rescind) the entire transaction. For example, if you purchased
233 Membership Units during our CF Offering on the StartEngine platform during the Super
Early Bird period, you also received an additional 23 bonus shares. If you accept our offer
you would be paid the amount of your investment, $100.19 plus interest, and those
Membership Units, plus the 23 Bonus Units, would be removed from your account. You
would also lose your Perks, including privileges related to Club membership and any unused
shopping credits on ONEROQCIub.com.

The following list of questions to consider is not complete and should not be used as
guidance as to whether you should buy or sell.

You should consider whether or not the price of the Membership Units you are
selling will go up or down after you sell them.

You should consider the effect that the Company buying back its Membership Units
has on the price of remaining Membership Units outstanding (reverse dilution).

'You should consider that the cost to issue, transfer, and sell Membership Units is
typically unconnected with the number of Membership Units. That is, it’ll probably
cost the same to issue, transfer, and sell 100 Membership Units as it will to issue,
transfer, and sell 10,000 Membership Units.

'You should consider the time and effort it will take you to provide the information
required to accept the offer, and whether the size of the check justifies that.

You should consider that buying the Membership Units back harms the Company by
reducing the money it has available to fund operations and market itself.

'You should consider the effect that harming the Company has on your remaining
ownership interest, if any.

'You should consider whether you want to keep the Perks that you received, and
whether the value of those Perks, financial or otherwise, impacts your decision to
faccept the Rescission Offer.

Q: IfI do not accept the Rescission Offer, can I sell my Membership Units?

A: If you do not accept the Rescission Offer, your Membership Units will remain subject
to certain restrictions on your ability to resell those Membership Units. The Membership
Units you purchased in the CF Offering are subject to a one year holding period that expires
on the anniversary of your date of purchase, meaning the date on which both your
subscription agreement was completed, and your funds cleared. Even after this one-year
period, these securities will likely remain illiquid and there will not be an official current
price for them as there would be if the Company were a publicly-traded company with a
listing on a stock exchange. Investors should assume that they may not be able to liquidate
their investment for some time or be able to pledge their Membership Units as collateral.
Since the Company has not established a trading forum for the Membership Units, there will
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be no easy way to know what the Membership Units are “worth” at any time.
Q: How long do I have to accept the Rescission Offer?

A:  You have until June 3, 2021, to accept. If you do nothing, you will be deemed to have
rejected the Rescission Offer.

Q: How do I accept the Rescission Offer?

A: OnMay §, 2021, we sent an email to all investors who are eligible for the Rescission
Offer, and for whom we have a working email address. The process is substantially identical
to the method by which you purchased your shares. You will go to the rescission offering
page https://www.startengine.com/blog/one-rog-reciscission. After you have read the
rescission offering document and decide to rescind your purchase of Membership Units, you
will select enter in your information to request a rescission. When you click the “Rescind”
button, we will inform you promptly exactly how many Membership Units are subject to this
offer. You will then complete the Rescission Offer Election Form, by providing your full
name, social security number, mailing address, telephone number, identification number.
You will also be informed as to the amount of statutory interest you would receive if you
accept the offer.

Q: The Rescission Offer is to reverse the entire award transaction — what does that
mean?

A:  When you made a purchase of Membership Units you may have been eligible to receive
Bonus Units and may also have been eligible for Perks. See above, “Did I receive Perks
when I purchased my Membership Units?” When you instruct us to reverse (rescind) the
Membership Unit purchase transaction, you will forfeit your Bonus Units and we will also
reverse the Perks.

Q: Can I accept the Rescission Offer in part?

A: No. If you accept the Rescission Offer, then you must accept the Rescission Offer with
respect to all of the Membership Units, including Bonus Units, and Perks you received
between August 19, 2020, and February 24, 2021, inclusive.

Q: What happens if I do not elect to accept the Rescission Offer?

A:  You will be deemed to have rejected the offer. You will continue to own the
Membership Units, including any Bonus Units, and retain any Perks for which you qualified.

Q: What if I already sold my Membership Units that I purchased in the CF
Offering?

A: Aninvestor who has already sold their Membership Units may still be eligible to
rescind their original purchase of Membership Units in the CF Offering. In that case, an
investor may be eligible to receive the difference between the price paid for the Membership
Units purchased, excluding Bonus Units, and the price at which the investor sold the
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Membership Units to a third party plus statutory interest. The investor will still be required
to forfeit Bonus Units and Perks without further consideration. To be eligible to participate
in the Rescission Offer, an investor who previously sold his or her Membership Units will
need to provide to StartEngine Capital LLC (StartEngine Capital”) reasonably satisfactory
proof evidencing the sale. Satisfactory proof of sale may take the form of appropriate
documentation reflecting the sale, the date of sale and the sale price. If the proof of a bona
fide sale is not reasonably satisfactory to StartEngine Capital, then StartEngine Capital may
require additional proof. In addition, StartEngine Capital may require evidence that any sale
of ONE ROQ Spirits LLC Membership Units purchased in the CF Offering was a bona fide
transfer of such units.

Q: What remedies or rights do I have now that I will not have after the Rescission
Offer?

A: Itis unclear whether or not you will have a right of rescission under federal securities
laws after the Rescission Offer. If the Membership Units issued in the CF Offering were
issued in connection with a Form C that contained an untrue statement of a material fact or
omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in violation of Section 4A(b)(1)
of the Securities Act, the remedy under Section 4A(c) of the Securities Act is rescission plus
interest. Federal courts have ruled that a person who rejects or fails to accept a rescission
offer is precluded from later seeking similar relief. Generally, the federal statute of
limitations for noncompliance with the disclosure requirements under the Securities Act is
one year from the date of the violation upon which the action to enforce liability is based.

We believe that your acceptance of the Rescission Offer will preclude you from later seeking
similar relief. Regardless of whether you accept the Rescission Offer, we believe that any
remedies you may have after the Rescission Offer expires would not be greater than an
amount you would receive in the Rescission Offer.

Q: Can I change my mind after I have submitted my signed election form?

A:  Yes. You can change your decision about accepting our Rescission Offer at any time
before the expiration date. If you change your mind, please email us at
contact(@startengine.com

Q: Who can help answer my questions?

A:  You can email StartEngine support at contact@startengine.com with questions about the
Rescission Offer.

Q: Where can I get more information about ONE ROQ Spirits LLC?

A:  You can obtain more information about ONE ROQ Spirits LLC from the filings we
make from time to time with the Commission. These filings are available on the
Commission’s website at www.sec.gov.

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
10



offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved.
These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have
not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of
any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the
accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent
determination that these securities are exempt from registration.
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Forward Looking Information

THE OFFERING MATERIALS MAY CONTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
AND INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS
BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY, AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE BASED ON THE BELIEFS OF,
ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND INFORMATION CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO THE
COMPANY'S MANAGEMENT.

WHEN USED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS "ESTIMATE," "PROJECT,"
"BELIEVE," "ANTICIPATE," "INTEND," "EXPECT" AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE
INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH CONSTITUTE
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENT'S
CURRENT VIEWS WITH RESPECT TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY'S ACTUAL RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON
THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE
ON WHICH THEY ARE MADE. THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE ANY
OBLIGATION TO REVISE OR UPDATE THESE FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS TO
REFLECT EVENTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES AFTER SUCH DATE OR TO REFLECT THE
OCCURRENCE OF UNANTICIPATED EVENTS.

The Company and its Business
Company Overview
Background

ONE ROQ Spirits LLC which operates in the distilled spirits market vertical, as premium
distiller and supplier of ONE ROQ Vodka, actively restarted operation in Q3 2018 after almost
two years of dormancy. The Company's re-emergence into the market is the result of a new
business and marketing strategy emphasizing consumer participation in the brand's ownership,
marketing and development including the benefits associated with membership in the exclusive
ONE ROQ Club which offers events and additional benefits to members. The ONE ROQ Club
program also allows members to purchase ONE ROQ products online for convenient delivery at
exclusive member pricing through an approved 3rd party as required by the 3-Tier System. The
Company maintains a "first-mover" position with its unique marketing approach and is raising
funding to scale and materialize the Co m pany's market value for investors.

Company, Product & Operating Model

ONE ROQ Spirits LLC (the "Company") was formed in the State of New York on March 12,
2012. The Company is an adult beverage manufacturer that primarily produces vodka under its
ONE ROQ® brand name. Its principal products include ONE ROQ Vodka (plain), ONE ROQ
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Loganberry (flavored), ONE ROQ Dark Chocolate Truffle (flavored), and ONE ROQ Raspberry
(flavored). The Company utilizes a satellite network of bottling facilities located throughout the
US which produce the signature ONE ROQ Vodka recipe. Self production is a potential tenant of
its future business plans.

Competitors and Industry
Industry

The $74 Billion global beverage alcohol market has been undergoing two macro trends

over the last 10 years: enormous industry consolidation into five international major
suppliers and an explosion of small, premium craft brands driven by skilled marketing
and demand by consumers for more "local" and "transparent” brands. Vodka accounts for
approximately 32% of the distilled spirits market, with the premium, high-end category
growing at 11% per annum.

The alcohol beverage market is driven by an increasing shift away from beer and wine
towards spirits and in particular premium spirit brands as part of an overall movement
towards "high-end" consumption. This macro industry trend has led to the creation of
numerous start-up "craft" brands over the last ten years seeking to establish themselves as
credible niche players to position themselves as acquisition targets for major industry
giants. Highly profitable acquisition opportunities have resulted from industry majors
focusing their marketing and distribution prowess to sell larger volumes of portfolio
brands, rather than harness resources to internally develop. This market environment has
led to on-going demand by these majors to acquire successful niche brands with scalable
marketing strategies. Acquisition multiples ranging from 8x to 30x sales with acquisitions
triggered over the 30-100kcases ($10M) per annum in gross sales can be referenced in the
"Historical Acquisitions" exhibit and diagram found on the Offering page. (The diagram
has been compiled by the Company using public research and industry contacts which
it deems credible.)

Market Segmentation & Pricing

The five major categories of the spirits industry include vodka, rum, scotch whiskey,
tequila and gin.

Within vodka there are four segments (or classes) of products, generally determined by
their price. These include: "Value" ($5-S12 per 750mL); "Premium" ($10-$25 per
750mL); "Premium, High-end" ($27-$34 per 750mL) and "Ultra Premium" ($35+ per
750mL). ONE ROQ Vodka is price positioned between $27 and $30 per 750mL
(premium, high-end).

Major Suppliers

Approximately 20 global suppliers control 90% of the sales volume throughout the five
main categories of spirits. Examples of the suppliers include Diageo, Bacardi Global,
Pernot Ricard, Suntory Beam, Brown Forman, Constellation Wine, Luxco, Sazerac,
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and Moet Hennessy Group.
Major Brands

Dominate sales of vodka in the US market in 2019 are held by Titos and Smirnoff
brands. Other brands that comprise the market share of vodka include Grey Goose
(France), Smirnoff (Russia), Stoli (Russia), Ciroc (France), Absolut (Sweden), Skyy
(Italy), Belvedere (Holland), Chopin (Holland), and New Amsterdam (US).

Strategies and Tactics of Competitors

Premium Vodka is considered a branded commodity; a common product on the inside
which is designed to appear differently on the outside. Methods for product
differentiation are highly limited with brands constrained to the use of" times distilled
or filtered" to separate the advertising of their respective products. Further
differentiation in processing is limited where storytelling or lifestyle advertising
become primary methods for generating desire in the consuming market. The
increasing use of celebrities have become commonplace but remains an unreliable
formula.

ONE ROQ has learned the challenges of competing under these traditional marketing
models the hard way. Over time, it has chosen to evolve its model to incorporate the
end-user in the growth and long-term value of its products through equity-based
partnership, immersive brand experience and collaborative innovation and processes.

The Problem/Solution

In short, each of today's current market competitors operates on a traditional business
model where profits from sales and value from the equity of the brands roll up to a small
group of private owners -- vs. end-users. ONE ROQ believes this is an opportunity to
differentiate itself from 99% of the current market through a Membership platform that
permits end-users to become valued shareholders and more.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Historical

The Company discloses its operating history beginning in 2012, where the Founder made
initial investments to develop and test market the products, study the industry, and
develop strategies to overcome industry barriers. Initial testing by the Company ran from
2012 and concluded in 2015. A period of dormancy was observed for two years where
the Company serviced minimum purchase orders from a single customer wholesaler in
New York, using the downtime to plan its reemergence in 2018.

Current Development Stage

Successfully relaunched in Oct of 2018, the Company spent the last year raising

funding to develop the vision of the ONEROQCIub.com membership and marketing
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platform, testing it through a series of initiatives on and offline marketing activities
throughout the country.

From 2018 through December 31, 2019, the Company's Founder and team directed all
focus on the successful preparation and launch of the Company's Regulation CF Offering
T as part of its plan to commercialize a new and differentiated business model and brand
platform, ONE ROQ Vodka Club (ONEROQCIub.com)

These activities included the research of all new applicable securities and beverage
alcohol laws; the production of new inventory; the conception and development of
marketing assets such as the Company's website, ONEROQClub.com, custom
technology programming for its envisioned membership platform, extensive on
andoff-line campaigning; labor; and minimum general operating expenses including
warehousing and office leases. Notably, the Fou nder/ Manager personally reinvested for
the necessary preparations.

With a proof of concept on its differentiating marketing platform, it is now pursuing a
second round of funding to begin scaling its platform and materializing its growth plan
for investors.

Future Roadmap

The Company is seeking further funding to: build inventory; hire staff; launch expanded
on and offline marketing and advertising activities; create national distribution
agreements and continue to create major media, hospitality and strategic partnerships to
further expand the brand's first-mover position.

The Company plans to build sales through two primary revenue channels: direct to
wholesaler-distributors who service bars, restaurants and retailers, and direct-to
consumers utilizing compliant 3rd party, e-commerce platforms who work with
retailers to ship products directly by mail-in states where mail order it permitted.

Currently, due to the 2020 Coronavirus Pandemic, the company anticipates e commerce
sales to be a significant contributor to growth in the coming years. However, as US
restrictions ease on retailers who were affected by shutdowns in the US, the Company
will also be focused on returning to its aims of building a nationwide network of
wholesale distributors to materialize its growth plan. Notably, the recent debut of the
Company on the cover of Food & Beverage Magazine has attracted the attention of major
distribution players in the market which it hopes to capitalize on as soon as distributors
resume comfort in the direction of US on-premise markets.

Looking further into the future, the Company's long term vision is to achieve material
growth over the next 3-4.5 years. Again, these are plans and the success of these plans
will be based on many variables including the success from our current and future
fundraising, the growth of the product and the brand through the growth of our
membership and subsequent customers.
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The Team

Managers

Name: Joseph Garrett Green
Joseph Garrett Green 's current primary role is with the Issuer. Positions
and offices currently held with the issuer:

» Position: Manager, Chief Executive Officer, Founder
Dates of Service: March 12, 2012 - Present
Responsibilities: Day-to-day management, oversight and leadership of
marketing, operations and financial strategies. Mr Green's baseline
compensation is $48,000 to $50,000 annually and he does not currently receive
performance bonuses in the form of equity or cash. Mr. Green focuses his full
time on the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Elmhurst Milked; Steuben Foods
Title: Inside Consultant
Dates of Service: February 28, 2016 - March 13,2017
Responsibilities: Helped lead the organization, management and strategic direction
of the Company's branded products platform. This included a wide range of
marketing functions including but not limited to brand strategy, brand
development, advertising strategy, valuation, company formation, B2C planning,
staging and coordination with outside consultants and strategic partners.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Green & Co Holdings
Title: Director; Lead Consultant
Dates of Service: October 01, 2004 - Present
Responsibilities: Conducts intermittent interactions with early stage consumer
products goods companies seeking start up, financing, marketing and brand
strategy consulting services. Less than 2% of Garrett's time is required of this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

* Employer: Get Fried Franchise Group
Title: Co-Founder
Dates of Service: May 01, 2015 - February 01, 2020
Responsibilities: Garrett served as a co-founder, investor and board member for a
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seed-stage quick-service restaurant franchise concept specializing in topped
gourmet french fries. Garrett led primary start up functions, set general
foundational marketing and operational strategies. The Company was sold in 2019.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all companies
in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These include risks
relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological
developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).

Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

Risks Related to the Rescission Offer

We may continue to have potential liability even after this Rescission Offer is made.

The Company’s offering memorandum, which was filed with the Commission as part of the
Company’s Form C on August 19, 2020, was also posted on the StartEngine platform and
delivered to investors in connection with the Company’s offering made under Regulation CF.
We are making this Rescission Offer to address certain disclosure issues in that filing. For
more details see “Rescission Offer — Background.” As a result, our offering memorandum
may not have met the disclosure requirements of Rule 201 of Regulation CF and, if a
violation, gives rise to a rescission offer under Section 4A(c)(1)(a) of the Securities Act. For
this reason, the Company has decided to offer investors who participated in our offering
under Regulation CF between August 19, 2020, and February 24, 2021 on the StartEngine
platform (the “CF Offering”) an opportunity to rescind (reverse) their Membership Unit
purchase transactions. However, the Securities Act does not provide that a rescission offer
will extinguish a holder’s right to rescind the issuance of securities that were sold in
connection with an offering memorandum that did not meet the requirements of Section
4A(b)(1) of the Securities Act. Should any recipients of our Rescission Offer reject the offer,
expressly or impliedly, we may remain liable under Section 4A(c)(2)(a) of the Securities Act
for the purchase price of the Membership Units that are subject to the Rescission Offer for
allegedly making an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission of a material fact
required to be stated or necessary in order to make the statement, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in written or oral
communications made in connection with an offering of securities in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act.

Your federal right of rescission may not survive if you affirmatively reject or fail to accept
the Rescission Offer.

If you affirmatively reject or fail to accept the Rescission Offer, it is unclear whether or not
you will have a right of rescission under federal securities laws after the expiration of the
Rescission Offer. Federal courts have ruled that a person who rejects or fails to accept a
rescission offer is precluded from later seeking similar relief.
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We cannot predict whether the amounts you would receive in the Rescission Offer would
be greater than the fair market value of our securities.

The amount you would receive in the Rescission Offer is fixed and is not tied to the fair
market value of our Membership Units at the time the Rescission Offer closes. As a result, if
you accept the Rescission Offer, you may receive less than the current or future fair market
value of the securities you would be tendering to us.

In order to accept this Rescission Offer, you will need to complete the election form and
provide sensitive personal information.

Persons who accept the Rescission Offer will be required to execute the election form, which
includes providing the company your name, address, and social security number.

There may a federal or state income tax consequence associated with accepting the
Rescission Offer.

An investor who accepts the rescission offer may be required to pay income tax on the
amount received.

Risks Related to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as "we", "us", "our", or "Company")
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford the
loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Company stock
should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to enable them
to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should consider
all of the information provided to such potential investor regarding the Company as well as
the following risk factors, in addition to the other information listed in the Company's Form
C. The following risk factors are not intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete
description of the commercial and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product, that
people think it's a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to provide the
service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract  business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that
are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies,
especially startups, are often valued on other factors including: market size, historical exit
valuations, projections and growth potential.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Membership Unit (stock) purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to
SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the stock
back to the Company, to an "accredited investor," as part of an offering registered with the
Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the benefit of your family, or in
connection with your death or divorce.
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Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these securities
and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future,
you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in
the educational software development industry. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds in its concurrent Regulation CF offering it may
not succeed.

The Company, is offering Membership Units in the amount of up to $1.07M in a
concurrent offering under Regulation Crowdfunding. Even if the maximum amount is
raised in that offering, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating

to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company

manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds sought in our concurrent Regulation
Crowdfunding offering, it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the plans
outlined in "Use of Proceeds."

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital. We
anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital requirements as
we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult environment for obtaining
credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it, we could be forced to
raise additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other action. Issuing
more equity may require bringing on additional investors. Securing these additional
investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your investment
could lose value as a result of this additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity 1s not
priced lower, your ownership percentage would be decreased with the addition of more
investors. If we are unable to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is
possible that we will choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset
remaining to generate a return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even
if we are not forced to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the
Company performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or other preferred stock vehicles in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Common Stock. Interest
on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating results. Preferred
stock could be 1ssued in series from time to time with such designation, rights, preferences,
and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more
advantageous to those investors than to the holders of Common Stock. In addition, if we
need to raise more equity capital from the sale of Common Stock, institutional or other
investors may negotiate terms that are likely to be more favorable than the terms of your
investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per share.
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Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of this
Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current business
plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions of the net
proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing
SO.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best estimate of the
probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by our independent
accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which management believes are
reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events
and circumstances beyond management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will
vary from such projections, and such variances may be material. Any projected results
cannot be guaranteed.

Some of our products are still in prototype phase and might never be operational
products

It is possible that there may never be operational product or service extensions, or that the
product may never be used to engage in transactions. It is possible that the failure to release
the product is the result of a change in business model upon the Company's making a
determination that the business model, or some other factor, will not be in the best interest
of the Company and its stockholders.

Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights

The Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them. However,
you will be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and therefore will have a
limited ability to influence management's decisions on how to run the business. You are
trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will grow your
investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will only be
paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been
paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company You
are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder,
and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good business
decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating needs
and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get nothing. Even
ifwe sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will (possibly) need to
raise more funds in the future, and if it can't get them, we will fail. Even ifwe do make a
successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might result in your investment
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in the company being worth less, because later investors might get better terms.

This offering involves "rolling closings” which may mean that earlier investors may not
have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose
subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All early-stage
companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not uncommon for
material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies' businesses, plans or
prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes happen during the course of an
offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with the SEC, and investors whose
subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their
subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been
accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising and
marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at a faster
rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will fail to gain
market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to achieve
significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely
impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on the
market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have much
better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They may
succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or
superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors
will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products developed by us will
be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

ONE ROQ Spirits 1s in the early stages of achieving operating history upon which an
evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be made. Our current and proposed
operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. These include
likely fluctuations in operating results as the Company reacts to developments in its
market, managing its growth and the entry of competitors into the market. We will only
be able to pay dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are
financially able to do so. ONE ROQ Spirits, LLC has incurred a net loss and has had
limited revenues generated since inception. There is no assurance that we will be
profitable in the next 3-4 years or generate sufficient revenues to pay dividends to the
holders of the shares. There is no guarantee that the Company will be able to drive its
projected enterprise value and conduct the target exit event through IPO or brand sale.
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We are an early stage company and have limited revenue and operating history The
Company has a short history, few customers, and effectively no revenue. If you are
investing in this company, it's because you think that ONE ROQ and

ONEROQCIub.com is a good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market,

and sell the product or service, that we can price them right and sell them to enough
peoples so that the Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and
there is no assurance that we will ever be profitable. The cost of enforcing our trademarks
and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even ifwe believe
that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights, we might
choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a multi-year
litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in light of the risks
and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the Company, including
undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into
sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent competitors from entering the market.
As aresult, ifwe are unable to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost
of enforcement, your investment in the Company could be significantly and adversely
affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day operations.
As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional employees in sales,
marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal, human resources and other
areas. Depending on the economic environment and the Company's performance, we
may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals for such positions when we need
them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can be costly in terms of resources spent
in recruiting, hiring and investing in the incorrect individual and in the time delay in
locating the right employee fit. If we are unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent
or make too many hiring mistakes, it is likely our business will suffer from not having the
right employees in the right positions at the right time. This would likely adversely
impact the value of your investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as the
FDA (Food and Drug Administration), FTC (Federal Trade Commission), TTB ( The
Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau), and other relevant government laws and
regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the selling of product may be subject to
change and if they do then the selling of product may no longer be in the best interest of
the Company. At such point the Company may no longer want to sell product and
therefore your investment in the Company may be affected.
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We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business

We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,

advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties

will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their work
that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse to recover
damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers' operations could
materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your investment could be
adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the data
of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service to ONE ROQ Spirits, LLC; ONEROQCIub.com or in its
computer systems could reduce the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of
investors and companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a
third-party technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any
disruptions of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on ONE
ROQ Spirits; ONEROQC]Iub.com could harm our reputation and materially negatively
impact our financial condition and business.

Industry Barriers

The beverage alcohol market operates on a federally regulated supply chain where 100%
of the distribution has become consolidated among a handful of dominant distributors
who largely serve the interests of 20 or so major global suppliers. Without Partnerships
with major distributors, an alternative supply chain, or a robust direct-to-home platform,
the Company may not achieve its growth targets on the time horizon offered.

Non-Participation

The market is heavily influenced by a small number of major distributors who seek to
limit the number of new brands in the market as a strategy to protect the interests of
established brands. Investors in ONE ROQ may risk not realizing the full potential of
their investment if they do not participate in helping to create demand by asking for the
Company's products in their own local markets through their preferred retailers and/ or
establishments.

Adbvertised Special Projects and Initiatives May Not Launch During this Offering

The Company may not be able to commercialize aspects of its offering that fall under
future or special projects or initiatives without adequate funding. In addition, the
Company reserves the right to invest in these initiatives with future potential financings.
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THE RESCISSION OFFER

Background

Between August 19, 2020, and February 24, 2021, the Company offered its Membership Units,
Bonus Units and Perks to investors in reliance on Regulation Crowdfunding of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), through the StartEngine platform (the “CF Offering”).
Under Securities and Exchange Commission rules, an issuer that is offering securities under
Regulation Crowdfunding (“Regulation CF”) of the Securities Act must provide investors with
disclosure that meets the requirements of Rule 201 of Regulation CF and Section 4A(b)(1) of the
Securities Act, and file that information with the Commission on Form C.

The Form C offering memorandum filed in connection with the 2020 Offering contained
financial statements that were reviewed rather than audited. Until the Company’s Form C had
been amended to include the Company’s audited financial statements, StartEngine Primary LLC
was supposed to hold all funds in escrow, and not disburse funds to the Company, until investors
who had subscribed had an opportunity to review the amended Form C, including the audited
financial statements, and reconfirm their investment before closing and disbursement of funds.
Due to an internal error, StartEngine Primary LLC disbursed funds to the Company before the
amended Form C with the audited financial statements was made available to investors.
Consequently, those investors whose subscriptions were accepted did not have an opportunity to
review the Company’s audited financial statements and reconfirm their investment prior to
closing. As required by Rule 201(t)(3) of Regulation Crowdfunding, the Company’s Form C did
not provide the appropriate audited financial statements. Further, the Company’s discussion in
“Financial Condition and Results of Operations” did not reflect the Company’s current financial
conditions and results of operations because that discussion reflected the reviewed financial
statements. We have provided the correct financial statements and revised the discussion in
“Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ to reflect those financial statements.

As a result, our offering memorandum for the CF Offering may not have met the disclosure
requirements of Rule 201 of Regulation CF and Section 4A(b)(1) of the Securities Act, and if a
violation may give rise to rescission rights under Section 4A(c)(1)(a) of the Securities Act. For
this reason, the Company has decided to offer investors who participated in our offering under
Regulation CF between August 19, 2020, and February 24, 2021, on the StartEngine platform an
opportunity to rescind (reverse) their Membership Unit purchase transactions.

Even after the Company completes this Rescission Offer, we may still be found liable for those
misstatements under Section 4A(c)(2)(a) of the Securities Act, which states that an issuer may be
held lable for untrue statements of a material fact or an omission of a material fact required to be
stated or necessary in order to make the statement, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading in written or oral communications made in connection with an
offering of securities in reliance on the exemption under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act.

Rescission Offer and Price

As of May 5, 2021, we are making this Rescission Offer to persons who purchased the
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Company’s Membership Units in our CF Offering on the StartEngine platform during the period
of that offering. If our Rescission Offer is accepted by all offerees, we could be required to make
an aggregate payment to the holders of these Membership Units of up to $243,247.99 plus the
applicable statutory interest based on the state in which the investor resides. We believe this
amount represents our aggregate exposure under federal securities laws. We expect to use a
portion of the net proceeds from our concurrent Regulation CF offering to fund the costs of the
Rescission Offer.

The Rescission Offer is open until 1:59 p.m. PSTon June 3, 2021.

The Company is offering to rescind investors’ entire purchase of the Company’s Membership
Units. Investors will not be able to rescind only the Membership Units portion of their purchase.
If the investor received Bonus Units and/or Perks during the period of the offering covered by
this Rescission Offer, the investor must accept the offer for all Bonus Units and Perks. For an
investor who is eligible to participate in the Rescission Offer to accept the Rescission Offer, we
must first establish the investor’s identity and participation in the Company’s CF Offering. That
means the investor must:

greement,

Erovide name, address, and social security number as part of executing a subscription
nd

needs to have complied with our terms and conditions generally, and specifically, those
terms and conditions associated with the issuance and transfer of stock awards.

As a participant in the Rescission Offer, you are required to complete and sign the electronic
election form that will be sent to those who qualify for the Rescission Offer. If you accept the
Rescission Offer, then you must accept the Rescission Offer with respect to all of the
Membership Units you purchased between August 19, 2020, through February 24, 2021,
including Bonus Units and Perks.

If you complete those steps (or completed those steps prior to this offer becoming effective and
subsequently complete and sign the electronic election form), we will repurchase the
Membership Units in your account that are subject to the Rescission Offer at the price of $0.43
per unit plus interest at the current statutory rate per year, from the date on which your purchase
was completed (the date on which both your subscription agreement was completed and your
funds cleared) through the date the Rescission Offer expires.

Federal law does not provide a specific interest rate to be used in the calculation of the
consideration to be received in connection with the repurchases of securities by an issuer in a
rescission offer. We intend to use the legal rates of interest for the repurchase of securities based
on the state in which an investor resides on the date that the investor completed their purchase of
Membership Units. If your state of residence has changed since you purchased the Company’s
Membership Units, the applicable interest rate will be the legal rate of interest for your current
state of residence.
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These interest rates are as follows:

Table of interest rates

State Interest Rate

Alabama 6% State Interest Rate
Alaska 8% Nebraska 6%
Arizona 10% Nevada 5.25%,
Arkansas 6% New Hampshire 10%
California 7% New Jersey 1.50%
Colorado R% New Mexico 8.75%
Connecticut 8% New York(3) 7%
Delaware 5.25% North Carolina 8%
Florida 5.42% North Dakota 6%
Georgia 7% Ohio 8%
Hawaii 10% Oklahoma 6%
lIdaho 5.25% Oregon 9%
[lllinois 10% Pennsylvania 6%
[lndiana R% Puerto Rico 5.25%
llowa 5% Rhode Island 12%
Kansas 4. 25% South Carolina 8.75%
Kentucky 8% South Dakota 1% per month
|[Louisiana 3.5% Tennessee 10%
[Maine 4.55% Texas 6%
[Maryland 10% Utah 12%
[Massachusetts 6% Vermont 12%
Michigan 6% Virginia 6%
[Minnesota( 1) 4% Wash%nglon 8%
[Mississippi(2) 6% Washington, D.C. 6%

issouri R% 'West Virginia 9%
[Montana 10% 'Wisconsin 5%

'Wyoming 6%

(1) Minnesota: If $50,000 or more the interest rate
increases to 10%.

(2)Mississippi: If purchaser already sold securities,
then 8% applies

(3) New York law does not provide a specific interest
rate. For purposes of the rescission offer, we are
applying the rate of interest of California because that
is the Company’s principal place of business.
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Acceptance

The Company will inform affected investors by email twice, once within seven days of the
launch of the Rescission Offer, and once halfway through the offer period. It will use the last
known email address as provided by the investor to StartEngine Secure LLC. StartEngine
Secure will ignore any email preferences in informing qualified investors of this offer.

The email will direct eligible investors to a page on the StartEngine website

https://www startengine.com/blog/one-rog-reciscission. On this page will be an outline of the
offer, a link to this document, and a button to initiate the acceptance of the Rescission Offer,
including an online election form. That acceptance process will be a duplicate of the process
used to initiate the issuance and transfer of earned shares, with four differences. First, the
end result will be a credit to the investor’s account with StartEngine in the amount of the
consideration paid for the Company’s Membership Units plus statutory interest, rather than
issuance and transfer of shares. Second, the entire award transaction will be reversed. Third,
the investor will need to execute an election form specific to his or her agreement with the
Rescission Offer. Finally, a statement will be issued informing the investor that there may be
Federal or State income tax consequences as a result of accepting the Rescission Offer, along
with a 1099 if appropriate.

As with the purchase process, if the investor fails to complete any step, the process will be
suspended until the investor completes that step. If the rescission process is suspended
because the investor failed to complete a step, StartEngine Capital LLC will inform the
investor by email of the suspension of the process five days prior to the expiration of the
Rescission Offer.

Once StartEngine credits your account for the total amount paid to purchase the Company’s
Membership Units plus statutory interest, you may transfer that portion of your account
balance to your bank account. You may also choose to retain that credit in your StartEngine
account and invest those funds through the StartEngine platform.

Details of the Rescission Offer

will also be available at —

log/one-rog-reciscission

Solicitation

We have not retained, nor do we intend to retain, any person to make solicitations or
recommendations to you in connection with the rescission offer.

Neither we nor our officers and directors make any recommendations with respect to the
Rescission Offer. Investors covered by the Rescission Offer are urged to read this Offering
Memorandum carefully and to make an independent evaluation with respect to its terms
when it is available.

Effect of Rescission Offer

Our making the rescission offer may not terminate a purchaser’s right to rescind a sale of
securities in connection with an offering memorandum that did not meet the requirements of
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Rule 201 of Regulation C, Section 4A(b)(1) or Section 4A(c) of the Securities Act or
applicable state securities laws. If a court were to impose a greater remedy, our exposure as a
result of the rescission offer could be higher.

Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company's holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of this
Offering Statement filing.

Member Name |Number of Securities Owned |Type of Security Owned [Percentage
J Garrett Green(48,950,000 Membership Units 91.0

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized equity stock. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding
raise, the Company will be offering up to 2,471,034 of Membership Units.

Membership Units

The amount of security authorized is 60,000,000 with a total of 53,905,471 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per unit
Material Rights

Membership Interests

Each Member shall own Membership Units in the amounts set forth for such Member in
Schedule A of the Operating Agreement; and shall have a Percentage Interest in the
Company based upon their purchase of interests, as set forth in Schedule A of the
Operating agreement.

Distributions/Dividends

Distributions shall be made at such times and in such amounts as may be determined
solely by the Board of Managers, to the Members, pro rata in accordance with their
Percentage Interests, as per the Operating Agreement.

Transfers of Membership
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The Company will be provided 45 days notice of any intent to transfer for their
consideration to purchase units from transferee, as per the Operating Agreement

Drag Along Rights

Holders of more than 50% of the Company's Membership Units have the right to sell
his/her Membership Units or the Company's Membership Units to a buyer, as per the
Operating Agreement.
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What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Membership Units of the company, you will have limited rights in
regards to the corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of
securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant
assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

The Company is planning for subsequent equity financings, and Investors should
understand the potential for minor dilution. The investor's stake in a company could be
diluted due to the company issuing additional membership units (also referred to here as
"shares"). In other words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the
company that you own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up.
You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares
outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees exercising
stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred
shares or warrants) into stock.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution,
with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage
an investor owns being less than before. (Though the Company has planned to limit these
potential dilutions.) There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends, and
most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any
earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
* InanIPO;
» To the company;
+ To an accredited investor; and

» To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled
by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the
purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the
purchaser or other similar circumstance.
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Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

Name: Membership Units Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $997,968.00
Number of Securities Sold: 4,994 946
Use of proceeds: Technology Development; Marketing; Human Resources; Inventory;
Fund Raising
Date: March 01, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

» Name: Membership Units Type
of security sold: Equity Final
amount sold: $96,543.00
Number of Securities Sold: 373 851
Use of proceeds: Legal/accounting, initial capital campaign expenses,
marketing/brand development
Date: August 31, 2018
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

* Name: Membership Units
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $368,958.00
Number of Securities Sold: 924,356
Use of proceeds: Marketing, brand development, product development and production
Date: August 19, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties.
Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those contained in these
forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in the
section entitled "Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
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From 2019 through December 31, 2020, the Company's Founder directed all focus on

the successful preparation and launch of the Com pany's Regulation CF Offering as part of
its plan to commercialize a new and differentiated business model, ONE ROQ Vodka Club.

These activities included the research of all new applicable securities and beverage alcohol
laws; the production of new inventory; the conception and development of marketing assets
such as the Company's website, ONEROQClub.com and cultural ad campaign "Own Your
Spirit;" and minimum general operating expenses including warehouses and office leases.
Notably, the Founder/Manager personally reinvested for the necessary preparations.

ONE ROQ Spirits LLC which operates in the distilled spirits market vertical, as a premium
distiller and supplier of ONE ROQ Vodka, actively restarted operation in Q3 2018 after
almost two years of dormancy. The Company's re-emergence into the market is the result of
a new business and marketing strategy emphasizing consumer participation in the brand's
ownership, marketing, and development including the benefits associated with membership
in the exclusive ONE ROQ Club which offers events and benefits to members. The ONE
ROQ Club program also allows members to purchase ONE ROQ products online for
convenient delivery at exclusive member pricing through an approved 3rd party as required
by the 3-Tier System.

Revenue

Sales in 2018 were generated by a single wholesale distributor, the Company chose to
maintain in its local market resulting from its original test launch period. In 2019, the
Company began testing its new e-commerce and retail marketing platforms in California.
Both years sales from this customer niche \Vere organic in nature and not driven by any
direct marketing or advertising investments. In addition, the company does not consider
the 2018 - 2019 variance in sales to be of material importance in light of the fact it had
been focusing its efforts solely on the redevelopment of its business model for the
intended re-launch into the National market.

ONE ROQ Vodka 2020 Sales volume \vas $64,510 up from $18,461 as reported for 2019.
During 2020 ONE ROQ produced 2,346 units and sold 680 cases as compared to 1,422
units produced and 316 cases sold in 2019.Importantly, the Company does not consider
sales to be of material importance during this period as the focus for the Company was on
the development of its technology/business model, team building, and capital raise.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold for 2020 was $66,742 as compared to $68,236 in 2019. The decrease
in the Cost of Goods sold in comparison with sales volume was attributable to improved
efficiencies in manufacturing and period costs of $28,000 that resulted in a one-time
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charge against income in 2019 with the balance reflective of sales volume
Increases.

Gross margins

In 2020 gross margin of ($2,232) improved from $(49,775) in 2019 due to the factors
discussed in the preceding section. While margins have remained negative they have
shown substantial improvement over the prior periods, despite the Conlpany-s
continued primary focus on platform development and fundraising activities through
calendar year 2020.

Expenses

Operating expenses were $456,463 during 2020, compared to $432,014 in 2019. ONE
ROQ continues its strategy to aggressively pursue consumers in the online web market,
the company invested heavily in Online marketing and sales development, spending
$362,400 and $364,300 in this niche during 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Legal and professional costs associated with ONE ROQ's crowdfunding campaign
resulted in legal and professional costs increasing by$29,200 from $18,500 in 2019 to
$47,700 in 2020. Information technology represents the Company's technology
expenditures required to support its growing customer and investor base with
expenditures in this category of $21,700 in 2020 and $34,900 in the prior year. The
reduction in this category is reflective of intensive initial tech base infrastructure
investment in the preceding years. Travel and Entertainment remained relatively
constant \Vith expenditures of $24,400 in 2020 compared to $26,800 in 2019 as
promotional events increased, development of distribution channels and customer
relationship building required additional travel nationwide were reduced due to
COVID-19. All other operating expenditures were immaterial and reflected consistent
nominal spending patterns year-to-year.

Historical results and cash flows:

Management believes historical financial results of the Company are not indicative of
future performance, as the Company has concentrated its energy and efforts primarily
in the areas of research, product enhancement, platform and process technology
development which is consistent with the Company's strategic plan to discover and
redevelop and prove a new differentiated marketing strategy and raise the initial
financing to commercialize said strategy. Notwithstanding the effects of the global
Pandemic and the completion of its prior equity financing, the Company is now
entering its second strategic phase of growing Company sales with its unique web and
member-enabled strategies.
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focus its energies on platform development and fundraising activities during 2019.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

The Company is currently utilizing cash on hand raised from its prior offering and
proceeds from sales of inventories as its primary capital resources. Despite the company
having alternative, viable debt financing options, management prefers to utilize equity
investment to fund growth, staying true to its belief that members- should "Own their
own spirit".

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

The funding from the current offering is crucial to growing the Company's sales
distribution network and promoting the product to increase both enterprise and member
value. Failure to obtain funding from the current offering would likely result in pursuing
alternative financing solutions which could result in slowing the growth curve and
diminishing existing investor valuation.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

As a distilled spirits brand built around a high-tech online platform, both the product and
tech components require significant early-stage capitalization . The viability of the
Company's plan is reliant upon a successful funding from this offering campaign.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

It is estimated the Company will be able to sustain operations for 60 to 90 days should the
Company meet only its minimum funding targets of $150,000. This is based on a monthly
burn rate of approximately $45,000.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

The Company will be able to comfortably operate for 24 months should it raise its
maximum funding goal of approximately over $1,065,000, assuming its minimum bum
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rate of $45,000 monthly.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Additional, future capital sources include potential equity and debt financing vehicles
including, but not limited to, Reg CF, RegA+, Reg D, and debt -based lending options.

Indebtedness

* Creditor: Scarp Properties
Amount Owed: $142,603.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Maturity Date: September 30, 2030
The note bears interest at 5.0% per annum requiring monthly payments of inte rest
and principal of $1,526 through maturity on 9/30/ 2030. The unpaid principal
balances totaled $142.011 and $144,521 and accrued interest totaled
$592 and $542 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, all respectively.

Related Party Transactions

* Name of Entity: J. Garrett Green
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature/ amount of interest in the transaction: During the reporting periods
presented, the Company had accounts receivable from its Inajority shareholder
incurred as part of normal business operations. Additionally. the Company has a
lease relationship with its majority menlber and oe,vner for office space used in
the Company's operations. At December 31 2020 and 2019, the Company had
notes receivable from Mr. J. Garrett Green in the amount 0f$54,880 and $27,147,
respectively. During the years ended December 31 2020 and 2019, the Company
was charged $15,000 in office rent expense that was paid to the majority owner
under the terms of the lease arrangement.
Material Terms: Notes have no formal repayment terms or stated interest rate.
Lease: Month-to-month lease, no defined term, cancellable by either party with
monthly payments of $1,250.

Valuation
Pre-Money Valuation: $23,179,352.53
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Valuation Details:

Valuation method, set internally, utilizes a variety of factors including but not limited to:
historical investments, company stage, technology developed from historical investment,
value of IP, size of market, trending brand acquisition values of like products, and
validation on business model and methodology to be scaled from proceeds.

Cash Investments & Sales

Approximately $2,099,000 has been invested since inception. $1,029,000 by Founder into
product development and industry trial; and an additional $1,070,000 by outside
investor-members for redevelopment and innovation pursuits. Over this time period, the
Company has sold over 6,000 cases with minimal efforts.

Market Method - Valuing Based on Historical Exit Cases

Historical acquisition value trends look at a brands total sales at the time of acquisition,
time in the market prior to acquisition, and the purchase price at acquisition. The
company, which uses data its has collected on over 8 brand acquisitions in the industry,
suggests that spirit brands able to cross 30,000 cases a year in sales, demonstrate a
defensible and scalable marketing strategy, have year over year positive sales trajectories,
and fill unique innovation gaps, are able to multiply their total annual cases by two and
place that number into millions to arrive at a reasonable exit value to a potential acquirer.

While ONE ROQ s still operating well under the recognized 30,000 cases sold

annual threshold, the company believes it has a clear roadmap to achieve the target annual
sales within a 3-4 year time frame provided the company is able to raise funding and the
appropriate broadline distributors enter into franchise.

Technology, Methods and Processes

From investments made through its most recent funding, the Company has successfully
developed robust and comprehensive programming unique to the processes, strategies
and methods of the ONE ROQ Vodka Club Membership and brand experience platform.
ONE ROQ 1s utilizing its technology to drive data sets and marketing successes in a way
that is completely novel to how the market currently operates. For example, ONE ROQ
1s able to pinpoint specific geographic areas, and

create predictable outcomes for product trial and long-term adoption in a way that the
company believes current brands cannot consistently accomplish or predict.

ONE ROQ is trail blazing a new web-enabled brand experience and marketing paradigm
inside the beverage alcohol market. In the company's view, there has not been a precident
for technology used in this way inside the beverage alcohol market and the Company
believes this creates an additional driver of value while it continues to develop. However,
the Company believes that similar early stage technology companies such as those in
Silicon Valley can be utilized to create additional basis for greater valuation.

Summary
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In summary the Company 1s taking its historical investments and sales of 6,000 cases,
arriving at an approximate $12M (before technology) value using established value
models from prior brand sales over the 30,000 cases threshold, and then adding an
approximate S8M in novel technology and process value. Given the trend of exit values
in our market, the confidence the Company has on achieving the sales threshold, and the
novelty of the technology which provides a model to base predictable growth, (and that
up to 10% of investor proceeds are given back via shopping credits in the company 's
online store), the Company determined its current valuation internally without the formal
evaluation of an independent third party.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

Except as described in this offering memorandum, the company has not previously failed
to comply with the requirements of Regulation Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company's website at

www.oneroqclub.com (https://onerogelub.com/company-information/).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or
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(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/oneroq
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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artesian
CPA, LLC

To the Board of Directors
ONE ROQ Spirits LLC
Buffalo, New York

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ONE ROQ Spirits LLC (the “Company™), which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of operations,
changes in members’ equity/(deficit), and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of ONE ROQ Spirits LLC as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of ONE
ROQ Spirits LLLC and to meet our other cthical responsibilitics in accordance with the relevant cthical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Substantial Doubt About the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has sustained net losses of
$462,201 and $489,207 and has negative cash flows from operations for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively. The Company has limited liquid assets to satisfy its obligations as they come due
with §72376 of cash as of December 31, 2020. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also
described in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the
outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about ONE ROQ Spirits LLC’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of ONE ROQ Spirits LLC’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as cvaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about ONE ROQ Spirits LLC’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
q arg, & garding 4

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters

that we identified during the audit.

Mecwa B LLEC
Artesian CPA, LLC

Denver, Colorado
April 9, 2021



ONE ROQ SPIRITS LL.C
BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72376 $ 64,455
Accounts receivable 21,180 7,820
Inventory 44,236 52,45
Subscription receivable - 63,5395
Funds held in escrow 2717 40418
Total Current Assets 140,509 228,333
Non-Current Assets:
Duc from related party 54,880 27,147
Property and equipment, net - -
Trademarks 547 602
Total Non-Current Assets 55427 27,749
TOTAL ASSETS $ 195936 $ 256,082
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY/(DEFICIT)
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expense ) 85618 § 45,235
Notes payable, current portion 11,471 2510
Accrued interest payable 592 542
Total Current Liabilities 97,681 48,287
Long-Term Liabilities:
Notes payable, net of current portion 130,540 142,011
Total Long-Term Liabilities 130,540 142,011
Total Liabilities 228,221 190,298
Members' Equity/(Deficit): 60,000,000 units authorized, 55,631,539
and 53,982,702 membership units issued and outstanding, as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. (32,285) 65,784
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY/(DEFICIT) s 195936 $ 256,082

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Net revenues S 64,510 § 18,461
Costs of goods sold (66,742) (68,236)
Gross loss (2,232) (49,775)
Operating Expenses:
Sales & marketing 362,359 364,257
General & administrative 94,104 67,757
Total Operating Expenses 456,463 432,014
Loss from operations (458,695) (481,789)
Other Income/(Expense):
Interest expense (5,506) (7,418)
Other income 2,000 .
Total Other Income/(Expense) (3,506) (7,418)
Loss before provision for income taxes (462,201) (489,207)
Provision for income taxes - -
Net loss S (462,201) §  (489,207)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
P panying gral p
financial statements.
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY/(DEFICIT)
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Members' Equity/(Deficit)

Membership Members'
Units Equity/(Deficit)
Balance at January 1, 2019 50,487,371 ) (63,980)
Issuance of membership units 3,495,331 703,366
Offering costs . (84,395)
Net loss - (489,207)
Balance at December 31, 2019 53,982,702 65,784
Issuance of membership units 1,636,355 441,287
Issuance of membership units - broker compensation 12,482 5,367
Offering costs - (82,522)
Net loss - (462,201)
Balance at December 31, 2020 55,631,539 $ (32,285)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Loss §  (462201) §  (489,207)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:

Amortization 55 55
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable (13,360) (7,820)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory 7,809 6,034
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable 40,381 33416
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued interest payable 50 (9,701)
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities (427,266) (467,223)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of member units 542,585 625,933
Offering costs (77,155) (84,395)
Principal payments on notes payable (2,510) (1,981)
Loans to related parties (27,733) (36,428)
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 435,187 503,129
Net Change In Cash 7,921 35,906
Cash at Beginning of Period 64,455 28,549
Cash at End of Period .3 72,376 3 64,455
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest 8 5,456 ) 17,119
Cash paid for income taxes $ - 3 -

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Financing Activity
Membership units issued as broker compensation ) 5367 § .

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

ONE ROQ Spirits LLC (the “Company”), is a limited liability company organized March 12, 2012
under the laws of New York. The Company is an adult beverage manufacturer which primarily
produces proprietary vodka recipes under its ONE ROQ® brand name. Its principal products
include: ONE ROQ Vodka (plain flavored/flagship), ONE ROQ Loganberry (flavored), ONE
ROQ Dark Chocolate Truffle (flavored), and ONE ROQ Raspberry (flavored). The Company
currently produces its products utilizing contract bottlers of the ONE ROQ recipes that are
currently located in Colorado, Oregon, and South Florida, with self-production as an important
tenet of its future business plans.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

The Company adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Concentration of Cash Balance

The Company considers all highly liquid securities with an original maturity of less than three
months to be cash equivalents. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts,
at times, may exceed federally insured limits.

The Company assesses its receivables based on historical loss patterns, aging of the receivables, and
assessments of specific identifiable customer accounts considered at risk or uncollectible. The
Company also considers any changes to the financial condition of its customers and any other
external market factors that could impact the collectability of the receivables in the determination of
the allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company has recorded no allowances against its accounts
receivable balances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Deferred Offering Costs

The Company complies with the requirements of FASB ASC 340-10-8§99-1 with regards to offering
costs. Prior to the completion of an offering, offering costs are capitalized. The deferred offering
costs are charged to members’ equity upon the completion of an offering or to expense if the
offering is not completed.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market and accounted for using the specific identification
method. The inventory balances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 consist of finished goods and
raw materials. The Company has outsourced manufacturing to a third party. Management reviews

its inventory for obsolescence and impairment annually and records any reserves against cost of
goods sold as they are identified.

2020 2019
Raw materials § 21,745 $ 10,575
Finished goods 22 491 41,470
Toral inventory $ 44236 § 52045

p il Fieat
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is recorded for property and equipment
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets, which is currently 5 years for
its capitalized assets. The management reviews the recoverability of all long-lived assets, including
the related useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a long-lived asset might not be recoverable. Property and equipment of $19,260 was held
as fully depreciated for a net carrying balance of $0 as of both December 31, 2020 and 2019.

lair V of Fi

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation
techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement)
and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair
value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of
financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-traded
instruments and listed equities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities
inactive markets, or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Financial instruments are considered
Level 3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or

similar techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets approximate their fair value.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

Revenue Recognition

Prior to the adoption of ASC 606, in 2018 the Company recognized revenue when it was realized or
realizable and earned. The Company considers revenue realized or realizable and earned when all of
the following criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) the product has
been shipped or the services have been rendered to the customer, (iii) the sales price is fixed or
determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenwe from Contracts with Customers, and its related
amendments (collectively known as “ASC 6067), effective January 1, 2019 using the modified
retrospective transition approach applied to all contracts. Therefore, the reported results for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 reflect the application of ASC 606. Management
determined that there were no retroactive adjustments necessary to revenue recognition upon the
adoption of the ASU 2014-09. The Company determines revenue recognition through the following
steps:

Identification of a contract with a customer;

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

Determination of the transaction price;

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

Recognition of revenue when or as the performance obligations are satisfied.

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers,
in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for
those goods or services. As a practical expedient, the Company does not adjust the transaction price
for the effects of a significant financing component if, at contract inception, the period between
customer payment and the transfer of goods or services is expected to be one year or less.

The Company derives its revenue from the sale of its alcohol and merchandise products. Each
product sold to a customer typically represents a distinct performance obligation. The Company
satisfies its performance obligation and revenue is recorded at the point in time when products are
delivered as the Company has determined that this is the point that control transfers to the
customer. The Company invoices customers upon delivery of the product, and payments from such
customers are due upon invoicing.

Costs of Goods Sold

Costs of net revenues include the cost of products, supplies, freight, and other direct expenses to its
sales.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC
740, Income Taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary
differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates
expected to be in effect during the years in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation
allowance is recorded when it is unlikely that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
9.



ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records tax benefits for all years subject to
examination based upon its evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740-10, for those tax positions where there is a greater than
50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, our policy is to record the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority
that has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where there is
less than 50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has determined that there are no material uncertain
tax positions.

From its inception through December 31, 2019, the Company was subject to taxation as a limited
liability company, and therefore was treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax
purposes with all income tax liabilitics and/or benefits of the Company being passed through to the
members. As such, no recognition of federal or state income taxes for the Company have been
provided for in the accompanying financial statements during that period. Effective January 1, 2020,
the Company clected to be taxed as a corporation. The Company has a net operating loss
carryforward of $459,152 as of December 31, 2020. The Company used its estimated combined
effective tax rate of approximately 26% from Federal and New York tax rates to derive a net
deferred tax asset of $§119,999 as of December 31, 2020. Due to uncertainty as to the Company’s
ability to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize the net operating loss
carryforward, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance to reduce the net deferred tax
asset to zero.

The Company files U.S. federal and state income tax returns. The 2020 tax returns have been filed as
of the issuance of these financial statements. All tax periods since inception remain open to
examination by the taxing jurisdiction to which the Company is subject.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business. The Company has sustained net losses of $462,201 and $489,207 and has negative cash
flows from operations for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
Company has limited liquid assets to satisfy its obligations as they come due with $72,376 of cash as
of December 31, 2020. These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time, without continued
financing.

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date
the financial statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revenues
and/or obtain financing sufficient to meet current and future obligations and deploy such to
produce profitable operating results. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to
generate revenues and raise capital as needed to satisfy its capital needs. No assurance can be given
that the Company will be successful in these efforts. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern.

NOTE 4: MEMBERS’ EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

Amen Operating A ment

In May 2020, the Company adopted an amended operating agreement which, among other changes,
increased the authorized number of membership units from 55,000,000 to 60,000,000,

The debts, obligations, and liabilities of the Company, whether arising in contract, tort, or otherwise,
are solely the debts, obligations, and liabilities of the Company, and no member of the Company is
obligated personally for any such debt, obligation, or liability.

Membership Units
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company has 55,631,539 and 53,982,702 membership units
issued and outstanding, respectively.

Planned Conversion

In April 2020, ONE ROQ Spirits Inc. was formed as a Delaware corporation. The Company plans
to convert ONE ROQ Spirits, LLC into the newly formed Delaware corporation, though such has
not yet occurred.

Membership Units Issuances

In 2020, the Company raised $441,287 through the issuance of 1,636,355 membership units
pursuant to two offerings under Regulation Crowdfunding, with 1,012,244 membership units issued
at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $198,059 and 624,111 membership units issued at $0.43 per
unit (with certain investors receiving a reduced rate under the offering terms) for gross proceeds of
$243.228. The Company’s portal was issued 12,482 membership units as compensation, which were
valued at $5,367 and recorded as additional non-cash offering costs in members’ equity/ (deficit).

In 2019, the Company raised $703,366 through the issuance of 3,495331 membership units
pursuant to an offering under Regulation Crowdfunding at a price per unit of $0.20.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, $2,717 and $40,418 of funds were held in escrow and $0 and
$63,595 of subscriptions receivable were outstanding, all respectively. The Company also incurred
§77,155 and $84,395 in cash offering costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, in connection with the Regulation Crowdfunding offerings.

NOTE 5: NOTES PAYABLE

The Company has several unsecured demand notes payable to Scarp Properties between 2014-2017
for total principal of $166,408. The notes bear interest at 5% per annum and matured in May 2018.
The lender has agreed to extend the maturity date of the notes to September 2030 with required
monthly payments of $1,526. The unpaid principal balances totaled $142,011 and $144,521 and
accrued interest totaled $592 and $542 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, all respectively. Total

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

interest expense on the loans was $5,506 and $7,418 for the years ending December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Future minimum principal payments under the Company’s outstanding loans, are as follows as of
December 31, 2020:

2021 $ 11,471
2022 12,058
2023 12,675
2024 13,324
Thereafter 92483
Total $ 142011

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company had balances due from its founder and majority member from funds loaned from the
Company. The amount outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $54,880 and $27,147,
respectively. These balances have no formal repayment terms or stated interest rate and are not
expected to be paid in the next twelve months.

(@) S

The Company rents its office space on a month-to-month basis from its majority member. During
both the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company was charged $15,000 in related
party rent expense.

Guarantee
The founder and majority member personally guarantees certain trade accounts payable.

NOTE 7: CONTINGENCIES

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actions in the ordinary
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but the
Company does not anticipate that the final outcome, if any, arising out of any such matter will have
a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Planned Conversions

As explained in Note 4, ONE ROQ Spirits, LLC plans to convert its legal form from a limited
liability company to a corporation. As of the release date of the financial statements, no date for the
conversion has been determined by management.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and for the years ended

Regulation Crowdfunding Offering

The Company closed on an additional $91,495 of proceeds from the issuance of membership units
in 2021.

Management’s Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 9, 2021, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based on this evaluation, no additional material events were
identified which require adjustment or disclosure in these financial statements.

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
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What |s ONE ROQ Vodka Club?

ONE ROQ Vodka Club s the lifestyle platform of ONE ROQ Vodka When you join, youTe purchasing asnership in the Company, and in return,
receiving stock and Club priviages.

Why ONE ROQ Vodka Club?

ONE ROQ believes that genuine lifestyle sprrit brands should offer geruine lifestyle peivileges - this includes the opportunity to reap both lifestyle
ard financal reward.

Haow does the Club work?

LEARN: Prosp: IrRstors are
pariner webske, Stankngine com

q 1o read all club c#fering material made availabie through the ONE ROQ Club webske and ouwr funding
TASTE: Before, during of ater joining prospective of enrolled members are able 10 arder the product a1 their leisure through owr 24/7 Conderge
servce via 1-877-Spirits

INVEST TO JOIN: When you are ready to join, proceed 1o our ANRA - registered funding page (va StartEngine) and chck Trvest” 1o start your
Imvestment. Your "imvestment” will secure your commement untd StartEngine approves and accepts your investment to be releasad to the
Comparty. This process can take 7 to 20 days urtil you receive a confirmation emad to confiem your Investment. Once you confrm, your
rvestment s made official. From there, be sure to follow addtional emall prompts directly from ONE ROQ to create your account and download
the app. From there, sk back, relax, and enyoy the Privieges of the Club.

For mare infarmation, Wsit our webste at: waw.ONEROQCIub.com

What is the difference in Memberships?

The difference in Memberships are reflected based upon the amount you have chosen Lo invest. There are no other differences. Al Members
recene the same sccess to Club Privieges, Please refer to our membership levels in the Terms section of cur Offering Memorandum.

What are the Club Privileges?
The Club Privileges include:
Equity: Irvest and own equity in an incernationally award-winning brand

2477 Concierge: Order or gift ONE ROQ Vodka arrytime via the dubs Perfect for stocking the home biar of gifting for special occasions. (Delivery
festrictions may apply)

Carry Requests: An app tool designed to alow you to request ONE ROQ at your favorite retailers. (in Development)

VIP Events: Receme VIP access to local and regonal events spensored by ONE ROQ (In Cevelopment)

Vating Rights: As an owner of Membership Units in the Comparyy, you have voting rights to influence company direction and strategy such as new
product offerings, package design, marketing & ad igns, dub privieges, and the p {uture location of aur destination distiliery(s).

Please refer to Exhibit F of cur Offering Memorandum which contains the Compary’s current Operating Agreement and a discussicn on all rights
af members.

Quarterly Lifestyle Magazine (in Development)

Dstribution: If the Comparry is profitable, Membersirvestors may receme a fulure annual dsIribution, Iestments in Stanups imvolve a high
degree of sk There s no guarantee of future dividends. Please refer Lo our Offering Memorandum for more information and an overview of the
sk factors related to cur business,

Snhare The Club - Once a member, buld the value of the Company simply by imiting cthers to jon the chub.

15 investing in ONE ROQ legal?

Yes, ONE ROQ Spirks LLC is conducting a Regulation Crowdfunding afféring with SzantEngine, & FINRA regulated funding portal Regudation
Crowdfunding lets private companies raise up to $1.07m annualy by selling sequites such as membership units, & in this offering, to the public
anline, Please note that as 3 liquor business we are also regulated by State and Federal Tied House laws, please be aware of thess when
reviewng our offering &9d making an investment cecision,

How much can |irvest?

These offerings are open to any irvestar aver 18 years of age. With Regulation Crowdfunding. non-accredited irwestars with an annual income or
net worth less than $107,000, are kmited to irwest the greater of $2,200 or 5% of the lesser of their annual income ar net worth. Far thase with an
annual income or Net worth greater than $107,000, he'she is limited to investing 10% of the kesser of the two amounts. Accredited imvestors da
Not Nawve restrictions. PIease raviaw SLtENgine's rasource hare regarding investments.



Wihere can | Lry ONE ROG?

ONE ROQ can be purchased through cur website for home-delivery at: ONEROQCub com. In the future, the product will be made available n
select retalers of your selection by using the "Carry Req app tool. The of this fasture is determinad by the status of cur
distribution In your market.

€an | buy ONE ROQ in markecs, toa, or just onkne?

Hf ONE ROQ is not availabie at your desired recaler akeady, we have designed an app that allows you ta submit Carry Requests to place ONE ROQ
n preferred retaliers and venues of your choasing, Once youve submitted the request, we work 1o place the produdt in that kgaticn within 7-30
dirys On your benall. Note, if Requests are mace inside 3 market that we have yel 10 set up an agent network, Carry Requests can take as long as
120 days+. Again, Ui fealure is currently in development and not available N, de. (Patience wil be required in our early developenent
stages.)

lordered product online. When will | receive my first botzle?

Defdveries take 3.7 business days from the time you order [dellvery restricticns may apply based on location). Orders fulfilled by 3rd party platform
by law.

Can | carcel iy Membership?

Irvestors are sble 1o cancel st any point throughout the campaign up until 48 hours before an issuer conducts 3 rolling clase Notice of
Dsbursement® is sent with deadline to cancel) If the issuer does not dose on your funds during the campaign, you will be sble to cancel your
rvestment up urtil 48 hours before the clasing of the offering. Please refer to StartEngine’s investor information center on their website for
further detalls. Once the Iive offering has closed, you may choose how to handle your shares. Imvestors wil be introduced to the company's
selected transfer agent, or cap table management service, who will be responsible for the transfer of your shares after the dose of the offering.
There Is not currently an established secondary market for shares, and membership unks sold under this offering have a one year period before
becoming unrestricted and are able to be freely scld. Flease read the offering memcrandum for further details specific ta this affering.

Can | sall my member units back 10 the company o to anyane?

Please refer 1o the Offering Memarandum for further detals aboul this raise, In general, for Regulaticn Craowdfunding offenings you are penerally
restricted from reseling your shares for 3 one pear period after they were issued, uriess the shares are transferred: (i) Lo the comparry that ssued

the securities; (1] 1o an accredited rvestor; (i) to & family fi as s child, step grandchikd, parers, stepparent, grandparent,
spouse or spousal equivalent, sbirg, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-n-law, dsughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, ncluding adoptive
refationships X (V) In connection with your death or dwvorce or cther similar or (v) to a trust by you or a trust created for the

benefit of a family member; as part of an offering regstered with the SEC. Please review StartEngine's investor infarmation hare for mare detalls.

‘What makes ONE ROQ mine?

When you invest in ONE ROQ Sprits LLC you're buying a pece of the company and its brand in the foem of equity. Equity represents a finandial
werest n the company, which aliows you 10 accept finandal rewards as we grow, have a vole n Company decsion making, and algn with the
Drand on a mare intimate level compared 10 other brands you have DOURNL i Ihe past. More detals as 1o unik holders' votes are included in the
Operating Agreement and discussed sbove.

‘What are the commements of the cub?

There are no commitments of the dub after you join, but we do hope you find features of the dub helpful in supporting the company’s mission
and grawth objectves, such as our 24/7 Concdierge, Share The Club, and Carry Request toals.

Why would | join ONE ROQ?

Qur commitment to prindpled drinking and counter-<ulture ethos s everything. We align ourselves with like-minded members who see through
the wesl of mass advertising and the dysfunction of big industry. We encourage everyone to be free, independent thinking corsurmers. If you enjoy
the privilege of akohol, why not form a deeper relstionship with a brand you own, guide and banefit from along the way?

‘What makes ONE RCQ better than Grey Goose, Crec, Titos?

ONE ROQ is 3 hand-crafted vodia of unparalaled quality and 1aste - developad with aver half 3 decade of maticulous ingredient sourcing and
disciplined recipe creation. Our first place gold medal in the Lrgest CONsUMEr Lasting competition in the warkd, as well as cwr 2020 95pt rating the
Food & 20 5a 10 this daim, What makes us this 00d? Some Say it is @ Secret redipe made from twa of the purest and
MOSE KON ngredients in the country. Mid-Western, Amerikan Com and antisan Colorada Rocky mountan water, Others say it is because & may
be one of the first and ooy gluten, sulfite and sodium free vocka n the world. Bul if you asked us, i's our urmwaverng belief that an authentic
ifestyle spirit should offer authentic ifestyle reward.

Is ONE ROQ better than Tros Vodka?

ONE ROQ and Titas have a lat in comman. We beth are made from carn. We beth have won first place goid medals in large competitions. We both
pramcte aur American-made values. We bath come from small beginnings. And we bath represent an undarlying resistance to foreign-owned
brands. However, ONE ROQ and Titos diffar in that we imite our drinkers ta bacome more intimately connected with our Spirit; 1o awn cuwr brand;
10 guide its direction; and benefit deyond the glass.

What kind of events wil ONE RCQ sporsor / produce?

ONE ROQ will focus on sponsoring and producing events for its members that include social mexers, concerts, sporting events, creatve events and
even galas. Memnbers will be given VIP access to Jl everts which may include complimentary food and drink. Covid-19 Is currently afiscting
Company everk schedules in 2020 but we ook forward to evakving this platform In the *Post-Cowd” era.



What laws govern Jicohol businesses in the US?
The Two imPartant Bws Zoverning our operation include the secunties w, Regulation Cromafunding (NS is how we are able 10 3ccept money n

exchange 1or equity i our company drect from the publicl; Tied House, which seeks 1o prevent intermingling between suppliers, wholesakrs and
1ol operators, and the Three-Teer System, which gaverns the Now of ours goods through the supply chain,

The Three-Tier System Is a federally regulsted supply chan requiring that all alcohol producers sail ther products to a icensed wholesaler, who
N turn must sell to a lcensed retaler, who In turn are able to sell to you. Because it could jeopardize our cperations, It Is Important we state that
ONE ROQ coes nct sell its products direct to its members, 35 this is would be In wolation of the Three Tier System. In liew, the company partners
with industry approved, onine fulfiiment portals that wark with your local retailers to delver our products to you. Currently, our partrer is 1-877.
Sairits, a trusted online celivary service of alcohakc beverage for over 30 years - ctharwise knawn as our Online Concierge.

For mare information, please refer 1o our Risk Factors which discuss these laws,

Do | need to Fvest to buy ONE RCQ?

No, you do not need to irvest n ONE ROQ Spirits LLC to buy ONE ROQ Yodka. However, Investing in ONE ROQ Spirits LLC provides you access to
3l our unique Club Privileges, describad abaove.

W/hat ara the benafits of jeining?

See Club Privileges above of by visiting us # ONEROQC Kb, com

Do | need to Frvest to join the dub?
Yes, when you become an investor you are also becoming a member of the Club.
‘What Is ONE ROQ's valuxion?

Please refer to the terms of our Offering kocated in our Offering Memarandum and on aur Campaign Page balaw.

What if rry stores/bar doesn carry ONE ROQ?
In the fulure, you €an use the ONE ROQ app to submit a Carry Request Our &m is 10 place ONE ROQ within 14 days in the retailer of your choice,

provided we have sctive dstribution in your markel, there is retaler scceptance and Covid-19 is not dsrupting the business of your desired retail
establishment, bar or restaurant. This app feature is currently in development and avarlable with limited coverage.

Da | get a discount buying ONE ROQ 1 irwest?
Yés5, 35 an irwestar you will receive an Cwner/Membership discount af up 1o 40% product whan ordered through ONEROQCIub com. Discaunt
<o0es are pasted 1o your Member dishboara manthly. Nate, due to Federal and State laws, ONE ROQ cannot guarantee pricing or discounts in

the market [i.e. in liquor stores, bars, erc). Hawever, X is acceptabie 1o sk your retailer if they woukd consider apphying an Owner's discount,
should they carry the product,

How do | buy ONE RCQ right now?
You tan buy ONE ROQ through our Online Conderge and have ONE ROQ home delivered to you. All orders are fulfilied through 1-877 Sprrits.com.
To buy, head to ONEROGC lub.com and dick “Taste." Akernatively, you can also check local retaliers. If the product s not avalabie In bocal retalers,

ance this feature & xalable, in your area, you can submit a Carry Request using your app and request it with the store owners or manager. {Ncte,
{ulfilment delays may apply based on your location and the status of aur distributicn in your market.)

Can | get a free sample befare | join?

Due 1o the cast of our product, a5 web as liquor laws prohibiting free sicoholic goods Lo Consumens, we currently do not offer free samphes,

Wil the cost of ONE ROQ come down aver time?

The company cannat guarantee ary cost changes but our hope & to be able to continue to IMprove our margirs and pricing.

What is the carporate structure of ONE ROQ and what i the diffarence becwaen a Membership “Unit” and a “Share” of Stock 7

ONE ROQ Spirits is currently structured &5 an LLC #nd you ae purchasing Membership Units in this offering, “Units” are used to descrive the
measure of ownership when a company’s legal structure is a LLC, “Shares” are used 10 describe the measure of annership in a C-Corp of an 5-
Corp. The company wil eval the adh of cormerting to & C-Corp but this s not planned at this time.

For more information, please refer to the SEC guidance in refation to Regulation Crowdfunding Investing.
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Meet Our Team

). Garrett Green

Founder, CEO, and Manager

Garretl has 14 years of professional product development, marketing and imesiment expenence within the Consumer goods industry. As the
Founder and CEQ of ONE ROQ, Garrett is responsible for leading &1 aspects of brands US and international brand strategy. Last Three Years in
Summary: From 2005 to present, Garrett has served as the Founder and Director of Green & Co. Holdings, & privately beld ressarch, brand
strategy and investment office. (waw greenandc.com). From 2012-present, Garrett has been the CEQ, Founder, and Director of One Rog Spinits,
LLC (primary position). From 20152017 Garrett served as Co-Founder, Lead Irvestor and Advisor to #getfned Franchise Group, an emergng
Quick-Service Restaurare Franchise with 7 global locations (www getfried.com). From 20162017, Garrett served as a key Inside Consukant that led
the successful brand development and launch of National, Non-Oairy Brand, Eimburst Miked. (waw.ElmhurstMiked.com) Garreet commits 100%
of regular working hours to the day-to-day operations of ONE ROQ Spirks, LLC

o [}

Irregular Use of Proceeds
The Company will nat incur any irregular use of proceads.

Reks

Acrowdfunding imvestment irvolves risk. You should not rwest any funds in this offering unless you can afiord to lose your ertre imvestment. In making an
rwestrment dedision, rvestors must rely on ther own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, Induding the merts and nsks invohed. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by amy faderal or state secunties commesion of regulatory authorty. Furthermare, these a.chorities
have not passed upon the accuracy o adegquacy of this document. The US. Seaurkies and Excharge Commizzion does not pass upon the meris of any
securities ofered or the terms of the affering, nor does it pass upon the acouracy or completeness of any affering document or IRerature. These securities
are offered under an exemptian from registration; however, the U.S. Seaurities and Exchange Commissicon has not made an independent determination that
these seOrities are exempt from registration

Rescission Frequently Asked Questions

Yow should reod the foNoming questions and answers, Tagerhes with the more defavied informanion regavaing the rescission effer and the risk foctors sel
Sorth elsewhere in this offering circular, Sefore deciding whethes (o accepr or reject the rescission offer,

Why are we making the Rescission Offer”

A: Under R Crowdfunding of the Actof 1933, as amended (“Regulation CF7), we are required % have an offering memorandum oo file with the

S #tics and Exch (& i ltt “C poioa”) that provades the dsclosure roqured by Rule 201 of Regelation CF. Our offeriag merorandum, which was
filed with !he anmnm- as part of the Company”s Form C oo August 19, 2020, was posted o0 the StanEngine Primary LLC platform (the "StartErgine platfoem™) and
deliverad o isveson is cosnocticn with e Comparny s offering made under Regulaticn CF (the “CF Offerisg™) In that offering memermdum, the Company inchaded
finemcial stavernents that had been reviewed rather than andited. For greater detail the Company's L S0e Offer - " Asa
resull, cur offerng menceandum may have Giled 1o most the Esclosure rojurenments of Rule 201 of Regulation CF snd Sectios 4AB) 1) of the Sa.\ul.\nAm-:d. ifa
vioksthon, may pree rise % rescission rights under Section AALCH 1 Ha) of the Secunties Act. Far this reason. the Compeny has decided 1o offer investoes who participased
i our CF Offering betwoss August 19, 2020 and February 24, 2021, on the SunEngine platfonm e epportunity 1o rescind (reverse) ther Membersbip Usils puschise
AN,

Q: Which Membership Usits are fachaded in the Reschsion Offcr?

A: We are offering, epon the lenms and conditions doscribal o this offering darn, 10 rescnd 21 of var ip Units made ca the SanEagne
platform during our offering made in rebance oo Regulation CF, during @e peried from August 19, 2020, throsgh Febewary 24, 2021, The 624,111 Membership Unies,




eacluding Booas Units, were puschied by 715 people s @ sesall of dheir muking purchase trarsactions on the SunEngine platform.

Qi Hew much did | pay for the Unies = the Offer”

A: The Company offered its Membership Units for a purchase posce of $0.43 per unit. Some investors were eligible to receive Bomus Unies dopending oo when they
purchaiod their Mesbership Units dering the Friends sad Family peried, the Super Early Bind period, or the Esely Bird offeriag period  Certain investors may aleo bave
Sad the option 2 recovve Bonus Units through the Stantagme OWNer's Boaus program. lavestors were caly allowed 1o panticipate i coe of the offering
Bosus Unite. Bocawse the Boaws Usits were providod 1o purchasers Based os (he tmisg of their purchie, and sol foe comiderstion, (he Company will caly reperchase
the Membership Unims thae investoes perchased. As pant of this Rescission Offer, investoes who rescind their purchase of Membership Unats will akso foefeit thowr Bomus
Usits. Accordimgly, invesioes who rescind (heir puechise of the Comparny's Mesbership Units will rooeive the snoust they paad spon investmest plus imerest al the
SROTENR statusory Tate,

Q:  Is the smonat | receive for my Membership Units ks the Rescissbon Offer taxable?

A We are sot qualified o give tax advice. Each persen's Lax siluaticn i differcal. We rocomeend you cossull your tx adviser prios 1o acceplisg ow offer.

Q: What will I receive if | secept the Rescissbon Offer?

Al We will place funds is your SumEngine lavesnent Account ogead 10 $0.83 per Membership Unit that you parchased, not isclufing Boous Usils, ples isterest ot
the current statutocy rate per year, from $he dwe your Membership Unet purchase was isssed sirosgh the date this Rescission Offer experes. After you provide us wieh
)wmlh.mnnllnnr.nlnddo«unymne-m'«w-k)olulﬂ&emath«mhnﬂkulﬂd-umlmm‘mm

Seartfinging Investment Account. You may tranafer any fends ited imo your Account 3 3 resslt of accepemg this Rescision Offer %0 your
oan bank account Please see the next question for a specific example.

Q. Can you give me an example of whae | will recelve If | acopt the Reschsslon Offer?

A If you purchased 235 Membership Usits o0 August 19, 2020, we will deposit funds into your StanEagme Investrment Account for $100.19 phis mierest at the
cersenn sty faie in the state in which yeu reside. 17 you panticipate i e StunEagise OWNer's prograss and purchasod 233 Membership Units o August 19, 2020,
we will depose fands mio yeur StantEngine Investment Accosnt for $100.19, plus inserest at the cerrene statisory rate in the state in which you reside. You will not
seceive funds for the Boaus Usits yo received in with yeur becausc ne wis pasd. Once fusds have boss deposited 10 your

1 Accosnt after ing this Resci Offer, you may trasafier $hous particular fusds to your own bank accosnt or chooss to mvest thoss funds
is the offerisgs on the StanEegise platfoess. See also “Rescission Offer and Rights of the Securities of the Company - Table of Imerest Rates.™

Q: Why can't you tell me baw mech interest | would enrs if 1 accept the Rescision Offer?

Al The satetory imerest rate is d d by your state of resid You are not requived 1o provide your address wntil you fully accept owe termes and conditions.
Sextatory imerent rates for each state are set forth in “Rescisson Offer and Rights of the Secerities of the Company — Table of Imerest Ratex. ™

Q161 accept the Reschaion Offer, what happens to my Porka?

Al The Compeny’s CF Offering iscluded imvestment inoeatives in the form of sembership in the Company’s Club based ca e amount isvested. All isvestors
recewved 10% shoppeng credits s ONEROQC leh com hased ca fhe amowmnt mvested. hmzlwmdmwp-.s(‘mldﬂuwlhm
lsvessed. For example, investors who purchased beween $100.5445 of Membership Units received Silver Fer mece Cud
memberships moe the zext question below. | you accept the Rescismon Offer you will also forfert each of taone Perks, incladimg sy usused shoppeng credits,

Q: D receive a Perk when | parchased my Membership Units?

A The Company offered Perks to mvestors based on the ameunt of dheir investment. All mvestors received shopping credhes 3t ONEROOQCIub com equivalent 5o 1%
of the assount of theie imvestmest. For example, an mvestor who puschased $1,000 is Membership Usits alse received S100 in shopping credits for we os
ONEROQCIub com. Additionally, investoes received memberships i the Company s Club basad on the amosnt of their isvessmens

Silver Membership privileges foe mvesting betwees S100 — $449,
Geld Membership privileges for isvessng between $450 — $2.449; amd
Black Memsbership peivileges for investisg $2.500 or more.

If you acoept thas Rescesion Offer, you will alse forfer yeur Perks, inchuding any wmed shopping credits. You will akso be removed from the Compamy's Chsb
memberships asd will lose relaed privileges.

Q: What inforsation do 1 have to provide 1o sccept this offer?

Al mellumldeuwlanmu:mu.mm“mmwm as is required 10 allow us w perfoess KYC (know your custorner) and AML (assi-
money bw checks A you mest e the election

QO When is it reaseanble te comvider this affer®

A: We dhink #t m ressomable for every affected investor who purchased ONE ROQ Spints Membersbep Usits 50 consder this offer. We caznet prve advice as to whether
of net you should duy or sell the Compeny’s Membership Units, 50 we cannot give you an opinion & 10 whether or not sonmeone in your particuler siouation should
accepe this offer. We do not kaow if the peice of the Memberskip Units covered hy thax offer will go sp or down. We do not kaow your perticular s sitsation, We c
Relp you with the math. In o separate but concerrent offering, the Company & actively selling s Membership Units a1 $0.43 per Membership Usit, and actively
awardizg Boaus Urees and Perk 1o investoes hased upoa amosnt of investment.

These is po fonmal marketplace for the resale of the Company's Membership Unies and the Compeany currently has no plans to lst any of s Membdership Units oo asy
over-the-cosmer (OTC), or mmilar exchange. These securities aee illiquad and $here will not be an official carrent price for them s there would be of the Company were 3
pudlicly-traded conspasy with a listing ca a stock exchange. Investors should assumme that they may not be able w0 liquidate thelr isvesanent for seme time o be able 1o

edge their Memberhap Usits as collateral Sizce the Compomy has not extablnhed 2 trading forsm for the Membershep Usits, there will be no casy way to know what
e Membership Unis are “wonth™ ot say time or eves 10 sell it

We are offening to reverse (rescind) the entire tramsaction, For example, if you parchased 238 Membership Units dermg owr CF Offerimg on the Startfingine platform
during the Super Eaely Bisd period, you alse received s additional 23 beaes shares. 1 you scospt cur offer you would de paid the amoust of your investssent, S109.19
plus imerest, and those Membershop Usity, plex the 23 Borus Units, wosld be removed from your account. You would also lose your Perk, including privileges related
% Cub nd ey usused sh credits on ONEROQC b com.

The Sollowing list of questions 1 coasider Is 201 complete and shoubd oot be used as geldance s 10 wheter you sheud buy or sell.

You should consider whether or not fhe price of the Membership Usits you are selling will go up of down after you sell them.

You should consider the effect that the Company buying back ms Membership Unis has o the price of Units
(reverse diluson)

You should comeder that the coat 1o ixsae, tramder, and sell Membenbep Usits i typically uncornected with $ie rumber of Membernbap Units.
That ix, it'll peobably oot fhe sarme 1o mee, transfer, and sell 100 Memberdiip Units as it willl (o swee, transfer, and sl 10,000 Membenship
Unite

You should consider the tne asd effon it willl take you 1o peovide the mfomation required o sccept the offer, snd whether the size of the check
Justifies that.

You should censider that buying ®ie Membership Units back barms the Company by reducing fie money 1t has available % fimd operations and
market itself

You should comeder the effect that harmisg the Corspary has on your ranaising oanenhip isterest, if any.

You should consider whether you wasl 10 keep the Perks fat you received, and whether tie vadue of these Perks, financial or otherwise, ispacts
your decision 10 accept The Rescission Offer

Moo VO e et et e Do Ve e § el e Ml $llie®
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A: I yeu do net accept $ie Rescaaicn Offer, your Membersbip Units will remain subject 1o certain restrnictions oa your shility 1o reacll those Mersbenbep Usits. The
Mmbemthu)wmh’uIllhcfommcummnmmmgunuhmmmmmo‘mﬂolm meaning the date
o which beth your sehecrip was complh and yoer fends clearad. Even afier thax cae-year period, @ese soceritiex will likely rersen ilbiquad and dhere
-mmu-mulcmmmm-um-vdamrmcm-m-mnrmm-tmlmuoum«xw Tevessors should
acumne that they may sol be abke W hquadale ther mvetmest for seme tme or be able 1o pledge Sicir Membership Units as collateral. Since the Company ba not
esablished a wadng forum for the Membership Unins, there will be 20 casy way 10 know what the Membership Unies are “worth™ o1 any time.

Qi How long 8o [ have to acceps the Rescission Offer?
A You have uoad Apeil 22, 2021, w ascepe. If you do noching, you will be deemed 1o have rejected the Rescission Offer.
Q: How do 1 acoept the Reschsslon Offer?

Az On Apnil 25, 2021, n-InmllnalI-mmmclwlﬂchmnmumoﬂu.mlunmmnw-wwmmllm mmm-
substantially identical 1o the method by which you purchased your shares. You will go 1o the resciision offering page Mips.\'
mlmAﬁtrmbnvnulhvm—lummnldummmdy«nmofnmmllmyw-lll-dlﬁ-mlnymnnlu-mub
request 4 rescisios. When yoe click the “Rescind” battos, we will infoes you prosmpily exactly how masy Messbership Units see subject w this offer. You will then
completo the Rescisson Offer Llection Foem, by providmg yeur full name, seciad security number, mailing address, telephone member, identification number. Yos will
abeo be infoemed @ 10 the amount of statetony imerest you would receive if you sooept the offes.

Q: The Resclsslon Offer Is 1o reverse the entire award transaction - what dees that mean”

A: When you made a purchase of Membership Unis you may have boon eliphle %o recorve Boous Unit -dn-nl»hwh-uhphklum So0 above, "DM |
seceive Perks whes | purchased my Membership Usits?™ Whes you instract us 1o reverse (sesciad) (he Membership Unit perchase you willl forfeil your
Borus Units and we will also reverse e Perks.

Q: Can | accept the Resclsdon Offer bn part®

A: No If you accepe the Rescisson Offer, then you must accept the Rescission Offer with respect to 2l of the Membership Ures, including Borms Units, and Perks
you received between August 19, 2020, and [DATE], 2021, inclesive.

Qi What happens if 1 de net elect 1o accept the Rescission Offer?

Al You will be deemed 10 have rejecied the offer. You will coatisve 1 own the Membership Usits, mcluding any Bosus Units, and retain sy Perks foe which you
qualified

O What if Lalready wald my Mo ip Unity that | purchased s the CF

A Mm-bhdvdynutmM-hdvpummnilhcbbhhmdﬁumgﬂmﬁudMMvamﬂnaoﬁﬁ I that
case, an investor may e eligde 10 receive the difference between te peice pald for the Bonus Units, and the price at which the
isvestor sold the Membenhip Usits 4o 3 third porty phus statutory isterest. Thmwiﬂmllqum‘lnhdnlhnUnmm‘Mth‘u
consdersmon Tokﬂlﬂenm:lmnnwommmmm ously sold his or her ship Units will nood 10 provide to SanEngine
Capital LLC Capital y proof rg $e uale. S tisfac ,Mnfﬂmmkﬁmﬂwum
Mmmwu»auumwem lrmmornmmuum Capinal, fen Capoal may

require sddtiosal proof. Inmwmﬂnyn@mmﬁlny-hnfONEImlpmhLLCWpl.\:mp-ﬂ-dnﬁﬂ'Oﬁnu
was a baoa fide transfer of sech wnis.

Q: What remedien or rights do | have now that | will net have sfter the Rescivsion Offer?

A: It is unclesr whether oe a0t you will have a nght of resci under federal ities laws afler the R ion Offer. I the Memberskip Units sased i the CF
Offering wee ssuad In connection with a Form € that contained an unarve statement of a maerial fact or cmits to state a maserial fact pecessary (n order ¥ make the

in light of the ci under which they were made, not misleading in viokstion of Secticn 4A(b)X 1) of the Securities Act, the remedy snder Saction
M(e)«mmlmsmbnplulmchml¢mm¢nun.numnnmamhnuwamcmm«umwmm
wocking wemilar rebiel. Generally, the federal satule of hmitats with e & under the Secuntics Act is coe year from the dute
of the vioktion upon which the acton to enforce labiley be

We belicve that yoer scoeptance of the Rexciasicn Offer will preclude yus from later socking smilar relic! Regardion of whether you accept the Rexciasion Offer, we
Delieve Mat any remedics you may have after the Rescisshon Offer expires would net be grester fan an amownt you weul recerve in the Resclssion Offer.

Qi Can I change my mind after | have submitted my signed election ferm T

A Yes You can change your decision about accepting our Rescission Offer at any time before fe expiramon dase 1f you change your mimd, please emall us a1
contaciiislanengne com

Q1 Who can hellp answer my questions”

A You can email suppon at 1 wih abour the Of¥er.

Qr Where can 1 get more information sbout ONE ROQ Spirits LLCY

A: You can odtain mece informemson abeut ONE ROQ Spines LLC from the filisgs we make from time to time with the Commission These filings are avallable on the
Commuaica's webeite ot wirnsec pov
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N MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECSION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING. INCLUDING
THE MERITS AND BISKS INVOUVED, INVESTNENTS ON STARTENGING ARE SPECLIATIVE, ILLICGAID, AND INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF 315K, INCLUDING THE
POSSIILE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT,

o s 3 Wb tEngire C Inc. (SarsErgion”), which is sether 3 regiiterad broker-dealer, investment advsor
sor funding portal

Urbeus inchcated ctherwiie with respect to 3 garticular luser. all securties-related acthaty s condacted by reguiated aftiistes of SartErgioe: SartEngise Cazkal LLC 2
farciag portal regiversd here with the US Securies 3nd Dxhange Canvmiwion (SEC) and Sere an 3 mamber of the Financial Incuntry Regslatory Asthority (FINRAL or
StartEagine Privary, LLC, 3 broker-dealer reghitered with the SEC ang FINRASIPC. You can review the backgraend of cer desber and o

=0 PINRA BrokerCheck here. SartErgise Secondary s an sitermnative trading vyaters regulated by the SEC and operated by Starttrgine Primary LLC, 3 broker deaker
reghtered with the SEC and FINIA.
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EXHIBIT D TO FORM C

VIDEO TRANSCRIPT

Video 1 Transcript: ONE ROQ Promo
[Music]

Text: This screenshot is for demonstration purposes only. For current company stock prices
refer to Offering page.

Woman: where to tonight?

Man: A new place. We'll enjoy it.

[Music]

Bouncer: Can I help you two?

[Music] [Shows the One Roq App]

Bouncer: right this way

Waiter: something to drink tonight ?

Man & Woman: I'll have a one Roq soda with lime, one Roq martini extra dirty.
Waiter: I do apologize we don't carry one Roq here.

Man: yeah that's fine I trust you will soon enough

[Scan of One Roq App]

Woman: Ben, please tell me you didn't forget to get my brother a graduation present.
Man: Of course.

Woman: Ben

Man: dear Bobby congratulations on the accomplishments all the best, Cheers. Ben.
Man & Woman: I like that, one for us, yes.

Man: There you go

Man & Woman: cheers to Bobby.

[Music]

[Text: Own Your Spirit. www.oneroqclub.com]

Video 2 Transcript: Founder Interview



Founder: If you don't own the companies that make the products that you use in everyday life
you're not taking advantage of your power in fact the companies that you don't own are taking
advantage of you.

Founder: my name is Garrett green I'm the founder and director of one roq spirits the makers of
one Roq vodka and the one roq vodka Club. I've been in the consumer goods venture space for
14 years. I got an early start I was 20 years old in college and took a fascination to the initially
the beverage space we ended up developing and launching somewhere around six or seven
products over five or six years. Over time honed in on a series of skills and processes that are
unique in order to be effective and proficient in the space.

[Images of One Roq Events]

Founder: The problem with the alcohol industry is that the market is propped up by what we
refer to as lifestyle advertising, which is a method of placing a brand inside the image of an
attractive lifestyle, sending the message to the consumer that if you buy or associate yourself
with that brand you somehow acquire that lifestyle. What we said was how can we create that
actual benefit, how can can we create the real thing, an authentic value proposition because the
idea of it surely is attractive wouldn't it be something if we could actually align ourselves with a
brand and then attain some measure of that status or potential success so that became the basis
for how we decided to redevelop our story and redevelop our platform again all driven by
authenticity not pretend.

[Images of One Roq Events]
[Music]

Founder: making one Roq more than just an internationally award-winning spirit one of the
first and most prominent luxury American offerings in the category, we are transforming it into
a club this is not your typical club this is something much different. When you join this club you
become an owner in the company you access a series of privileges unique to that ownership. For
example, an annual future dividend, a vote in company decision making, referral rewards, 24/7
ordering and gifting concierge, monthly curated content from a team of writers that we have.
You get access to highly unique social events that we sponsor across the country. We work with
the Tribeca Film Festival, the Hamptons, art basel, the x-games, following that Sundance Film
Festival. These are some of the largest and most reputable events in the country and we're
already getting involved.

Text on Screen: Investments in startups involve a high degree of risk. There is no guarantee of
future dividends. Please refer to our Offering Memorandum for more information.

[Music]
[Images of events]

Founder: And last but not least pools that allow you to impart control over where your brand is
placed in the marketplace we call this the carry request which is an app tool very first of its kind
in the industry which allows our members to request up to six of their preferred retailers in their
local markets. This is completely reinventing the way that brands are brought to market,



introduced to retailers, and validation is given or demonstrated to that retailer who has to make
the decision whether your brand is worthy or not. This is a completely new experience that one
roq is innovating in distilled spirits industry we are the first company in this industry to bring
this experience to consumers and that is opportunity. Joining the club is as simple as going to
oneroqclub.com to make your first investment.

[Music]
Video 3 Transcript: Tribeca film text
The following is private footage from premier sponsorships at the 2019 Tribeca Film Festival.

We sponsor and curate events like these to provide our ONE ROQ Club Members access to new
and unique social experiences in their local and regional markets, as well as introduce new
Members to the Club.

Many of our NYC and NJ-based Members relaxed as they mingled with actors, models and
producers, all while sipping on cocktails made with their vodka.

Video 4 Transcript: Founder Interview at Fall Luxury Review

ONE ROQ is the first super-premium American Vodka ever to be introduced in the spirits
industry. We produce our product with one of the rarest forms of pure spirit distillation in the
country, which is Glass Column Distillation. We have three expressions, a Mixing Black Label, a
Silver Sipping Label, and a Red Dessert Label. We wanted a brand that conveyed national
identity, because we're trying to become America’s Premium Vodka. So we actually started with
ONE ROCK. R-O-C-K. Always thought that was too generic. Let's change the C-Kto a Q for a
little flair in differentiation.

I was a sophomore in college pursuing a political science degree, and I developed an extreme
appreciation for America, our identity, our position in the world. And simultaneously, I also
became enamored with the beverage space, and no, not because I was drinking a lot. And I
found that it was startling that the greatest country in the world did not have any skin in the
game when it came to the largest, oldest, and most prestigious category in alcohol beverage. If
you look at all other brands of premium vodkas, we can sit back and collectively agree that
America is without its own national brands, like Ricard is to France, or Smirnoff is to Russia, or
Absolut is to Sweden.

Where is America's super premium brand? It's absent. Now, it's here. We are available in 24
states. However, if you're a resident of New York, Florida, California, Texas, or Nevada, you can
secure our product online at onerog.com and have it home-delivered to you. So we're
headquartered in Buffalo, New York. That's my hometown. We operate the business from there,
but we actually produce in Indianapolis and Denver, Colorado. The reason for that is because we
draw on a natural aquifer in the Rocky Mountains. The water is actually so important to our
recipe that we ship it to Indianapolis.

So we're about a year and a half old effectively. We've had some extremely impressive
milestones, including authorizations in the largest liquor store chain in the country, accolades
in Robb Report magazine, partnerships with the largest online retailer of spirits. And recently



the National Enquirer spotted Catherine Zeta-Jones purchasing vials of ONE ROQ and Grey
Goose outside of their home in Bedford, New York. And I might add, that was completely
unpaid. It just happened organically. Yeah. Super premium luxury vodka. However, it's not out
of reach to Americans. We're an American product. So we are not priced out of reach. In fact,
quite the opposite. Will be priced at $1 less than Grey Goose on the market. They can go to
oneroq O-N-E R-O-Q .com to learn more information and to also purchase and sample the
product, and have it home delivered.’

Video 5 Transcript: Hamptons

This summer, ONE ROQ Vodka Club cordially invited its Members to a luxury escape in the
Hamptons. Members arrived from New York, New Jersey, and Rhode Island to enjoy an
afternoon on a multi-million dollar estate featuring a Ferrari concours, leading luxury brand
exhibits,

complimentary brunch, and cocktails by their's truly.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

e As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the issuer is required to
pay to StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 6-8% (six to eight percent) commission
based on the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement
of funds from escrow at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash and in
securities of the Issuer identical to those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole
discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally, the issuer must reimburse certain
expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine Capital, if any, will
be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions and rights as the securities being
offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine Capital’s website.

Information Regarding Length of Time of Offering

¢ Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the
offering period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any
reason. Once within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason,
even if they make a commitment during this period.

e Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A
change in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management,
material change to financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the
offering terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline,
investors will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If
investors do not reconfirm, their investment will be cancelled and the funds will be
returned.

Hitting The Target Goal Early & Oversubscriptions

e StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit
25%, 50% and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, the issuer can
create a new target deadline at least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the
new target deadline via email and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours
before new deadline.

e Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be
possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement
requirements (and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach
$1.07M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the
discretion of the issuer.

e [f the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment
commitments will be cancelled and committed funds will be returned.

e If a StartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may
conduct an initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering
deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material
change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the
investment commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its



target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the
offering deadline.

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

e In order to invest, to commit to an investment or to communicate on our platform, users
must open an account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non-
personal information including information related to income, net worth, and other
investments.

e Investor Limitations: Investors are limited in how much they can invest on all
crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on how much they
can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence) and
annual income. If either their annual income or net worth is less than $107,000, then
during any 12-month period, they can invest up to the greater of either $2,200 or 5% of the
lesser of their annual income or net worth. If both their annual income and net worth are
equal to or more than $107,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest up to
10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is less, but their investments cannot exceed
$107,000.



EXHIBIT F TO FORM C
ADDITIONAL CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

[See attached]



FOURTH AMENDED AND RESTATED
OPERATING AGREEMENT
OF
ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC

This Fourth Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, dated as of May 1st, 2020, is
entered into by the undersigned.

WHEREAS, a limited liability company known as ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC (the
“Company”) has been formed pursuant to the Act; and

WHEREAS, a Third Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of the Company,
dated as of August 20, 2018 was previously executed and delivered and serves as the operating
agreement for the Company (the “Prior Operating Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the undersigned desire to establish their respective rights and obligations
pursuant to the Act and further amend and restate the Prior Operating Agreement as
contemplated herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned agrees as follows:

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

1.1  Definitions. In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set
forth below:

“Act” means the New York Limited Liability Company Law, as amended and in
effect from time to time.

“Adoption Agreement  shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2(b).

“Affiliate " means any Person controlled by or under common control with a
Person and any immediate family member of a Person.

“Agreement " means this Third Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of
ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC together with all the Schedules and Exhibits hereto.

“Articles of Organization " means the Articles of Organization of the Company
filed or to be filed with the New York Department of State, as they may from time to time be
amended.
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“Authorization Date " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.2(a).

“Available Unit Purchase Notice " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
Section 7.2(b).

“Available Units ” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.2(a).

“Board of Managers " means the Managers and such additional or successor
Managers as are elected in accordance with this Agreement.

“Code " means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect from
time to time, as interpreted by the applicable regulations thereunder. Any reference herein to a
specific section or sections of the Code shall be deemed to include a reference to any
corresponding provision of future law.

“Company " has the meaning ascribed to it in the recitals.

“Distribution " means any cash and other property distributed to a Member by the
Company from the operations of the Company or from capital.

“Drag Along " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.3.
“Drag Along Notice " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.3.

“Fiscal Year " means the fiscal year of the Company, which shall be the year
ending December 31.

“Interested Member ” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.11.

“IRS " means the Internal Revenue Service of the U.S. Department of the
Treasury.

“Liquidating Event " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 8.2(a).
“Liquidator " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 8.2(a).

“Managers " means J. Garrett Green and such additional or successor Managers
as are elected in accordance with this Agreement.

“Member " shall mean each Person who or which executes a counterpart of this
Agreement as a Member and each Person who or which may hereafter become a party to this
Agreement, but shall not include any Person who ceases to be a Member, for any reason, in
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accordance with the terms of this Agreement. For all purposes, each Member, as defined herein,
shall be deemed to be a “member” as such term is defined in the Act.

“Membership Interest”” means an ownership interest in the Company held by
each Member. A Membership Interest includes any and all benefits to which the holder of such a
Membership Interest may be entitled as provided in this Agreement, together with all obligations
of such Person to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. A Membership
Interest may be expressed as a number of Membership Units. The ownership of Membership
Units shall be evidenced by such form of certificate for units as the Board of Managers adopts
from time to time. If no such form of certificate is adopted by the Board of Managers, the
Membership Units shall be deemed to be uncertificated securities as defined in Section 8-102 of
the New York Uniform Commercial Code.

“Membership Units " means the units evidencing a right to receive distributions
of the Company issued to such Member in the numbers set forth opposite such Member’s name
on Schedule A annexed hereto, as may be amended from time to time.

“Offer Notice " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.2(a).

“Percentage Interest” means, as to a Member, his, her or its interest in the
Company as determined by dividing the Membership Units owned by such Member by the total
number of Membership Units then issued and outstanding and as specified in Schedule A
attached hereto, as such Schedule may be amended from time to time.

“Permitted Transferee " means (a) the descendants of a Member, (b) a trust for
the benefit of a Member’s descendants or other Members, (¢) another Member or Members,
(d) the personal representative of the estate of any Person described in clause (a) or (c), or (e) the
Company.

“Person " means any natural person or any corporation, governmental authority,
limited liability company, partnership, trust, unincorporated association or other entity.

“Regulations ” means the Income Tax Regulations promulgated under the Code,
as such regulations may be amended from time to time (including corresponding provisions of
succeeding regulations).

“Substituted Member " shall have the meaning ascribed to it Section 7.6(b).

“Terminating Capital Transaction ” means any sale or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company or a related series of transactions that, taken
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together, result in the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company.

“Transfer " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.1.

“Transferring Holder " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.2(a).

“Triggering Holder " shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 7.3.
ARTICLE Il

ORGANIZATION

2.1  Formation. The parties have caused the formation of the Company pursuant to
the Act by filing Articles of Organization with the New York Department of State.

2.2  Operating Agreement. This Agreement amends, restates and replaces the Prior
LLC Agreement in all respects and upon the execution and delivery of hereof, this Agreement,
including all of the Schedules and Exhibits hereto, shall constitute the “Operating Agreement™ of
the Company as such term is used in the Act. By execution and delivery of this Agreement, the
amendment and restatement of this Agreement has been approved by J. Garrett Green in his
capacity as a Member holding not less than a majority of the issued and outstanding Membership
Units.

2.3 Election to be Taxed as a Corporation. The Company has filed Form 8832 with
the IRS and has elected to be taxed as an association taxable as a corporation in accordance with
Section 301.7701-3 of the Regulations.

ARTICLE Il

MEMBERS
3.1  Membership Units; Names and Addresses.

(@) The Company is hereby authorized to issue Membership Units designated
as “Membership Units™ and shall be authorized to issue up to 60,000,000 Membership Units.
Membership Units shall be entitled to the allocations and distributions set forth in this
Agreement and Members shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Membership Unit held by such
Member.

(b)  The names, addresses, and number of Membership Units held by each of
the Members are as set forth in Schedule A to this Agreement.

3.2  Additional Members; Acknowledgments of Additional Members Regarding
Operation of the Company.
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(@) A Person may be admitted as a Member after the date of this Agreement
upon a vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof. At the time of such vote, and
the number of Membership Units to be allocated to such Person upon admission as a Member.

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Person shall become a Member until
such time as that Person has executed and filed with the Company an adoption agreement (which
has been countersigned by a duly authorized representative of the Company) whereby such
Person has agreed to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Operating Agreement (the
“Adoption Agreement,” in the form as substantially set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto) and
(ii) provided the purchase price for the Membership Units to the Company in accordance with
the terms of the subscription agreement executed by the Member.

(©) Upon the admission of an additional Member in accordance with this
Section 3.2, the Board of Managers shall amend Schedule A to reflect the admission of such
additional Member.

(d) Each of the Persons that become additional Members of the Company
acknowledge and agree that:

(i) J. Garrett Green (“Green”) owns more than a majority of the
Membership Units and serves as the sole Manager of the Company and controls the operation of
the Company and may amend this Agreement without the consent of any other Member;

(i) in connection with the operation of the Company, Green may enter
into one or more interested transactions (i.e., transactions between the Company and Green
and/or transactions between the Company and an entity in which Green holds an equity interest)
(each, an “Interested Transaction™) and Green shall be entitled to unilaterally approve all such
Interested Transactions on behalf of the Company without the vote of any other Member of the
Company,

(iii)  itis currently contemplated that the Company shall convert into a
corporation under applicable state laws in the future and may be approved unilaterally by Green
in his capacity as Member holding more than a majority of the issued and outstanding
Membership Units;

(iv)  each Member has reviewed the terms of the disclosure documents
provided in connection with the offering of Membership Units and understands the risks
associated with the purchase of the Membership Units;

(v)  itis currently contemplated that the Company may engage in one
or more future equity financings which will result in dilution relative to the existing Members of
the Company; and
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(vi)  Green shall not have any liability arising from exercising his
discretion in his capacity as sole Manager of the Company and Member of the Company holding
more than a majority of the issued and outstanding Membership Units of the Company.

3.3  Books and Records. The Company shall keep books and records of accounts and
minutes of all meetings of the Members. Such books and records shall be maintained on a cash
basis in accordance with this Agreement and with generally accepted accounting principles.

3.4 Information. Each Member may inspect during ordinary business hours, and at
the principal place of business of the Company, the Articles of Organization, this Agreement, the
minutes of any meeting of the Members and any tax returns of the Company for the immediately
preceding three Fiscal Years.

3.5  Meetings of Members. The Members shall meet at such times as meetings are
called in accordance with the Operating Procedures set forth on Exhibit A. Meetings of
Members and governance of the Company shall be in accordance with such Operating
Procedures.

3.6  Voting Agreements. An agreement between two or more Members, if in writing
and signed by the parties thereto, may provide that in exercising any voting rights, the
Membership Units held by them shall be voted as therein provided, or as they may agree, or as
determined in accordance with a procedure agreed upon by them.

3.7  Action by Vote of the Members. Except as otherwise provided in the Act, the
Articles of Organization or this Agreement, whenever the Members are required or permitted to
vote or otherwise act, the affirmative vote of Members holding not less than a majority of the
Membership Units shall be the act of the Members.

3.8  Independent Business Opportunities. Each Member may engage independently or
with others, for their own accounts and for the accounts of others, in other business ventures and
activities of every nature and description (each, an “Independent Business Opportunity™).
Neither the Company nor any other Member shall have the right to participate in any manner in
any such Independent Business Opportunity of a Member or in any profits or income earned or
derived therefrom.

ARTICLE IV

MANAGEMENT AND EXTRAORDINARY TRANSACTIONS

41 Management. The Company’s business shall be managed by the Board of
Managers, who shall be elected by the Members in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof. Except
as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all management decisions shall be determined by the
Board of Managers in accordance with the Operating Procedures attached hereto as Exhibit A.
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42  Duty of Manager. Each Manager shall perform his or her duties as a Manager in
good faith and with that degree of care which an ordinary prudent person in like position would
use under similar circumstances. In performing his or her duties, a Manager shall be entitled to
rely on information, opinions, reports and statements, including, without limitation, financial
statements and other financial data, in each case prepared by any Person as to matters the
Manager reasonably believes are within such Person’s professional or expert competence.

4.3  Number, Tenure and Qualifications of Manager. The Company shall have one
(1) Manager which shall be J. Garrett Green. The number of Managers of the Company may be
amended from time to time by vote of Members in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof. The
Managers shall hold office until the next annual meeting of Members or until a successor shall
have been elected and qualified.

44  Powers of Managers. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, including
without limitation Section 4.11, the Board of Managers shall have the power and authority, on
behalf of the Company, to (a) purchase, lease or otherwise acquire from, or sell, lease or
otherwise dispose of to, any Person any property; (b) open bank accounts and otherwise invest
the funds of the Company; (c) purchase insurance on the business and assets of the Company;
(d) commence lawsuits and other proceedings; (e) enter into any agreement, instrument or other
writing; (f) retain accountants, attorneys or other agents and (g) take any other lawful action that
the Board of Managers consider necessary, convenient or advisable in connection with any
business of the Company.

45  No Exclusive Duty to Company. The Managers shall not be required to manage
the Company as their sole and exclusive function, and they may have other business interests and
may engage in other activities in addition to those relating to the Company. Neither the
Company nor any Member shall have any right pursuant to this Agreement to share or participate
in such other business interests or activities or to the income or proceeds derived therefrom. The
Managers shall incur no liability to the Company or any Member as a result of engaging in any
other business interests or activities. To the fullest extent permitted by law, each of the Members
waives any and all fiduciary and other duties imposed on the Manager and each other Member
under any applicable law, rule or regulation and acknowledge and agree that in managing the
Company, the Manager is entitled to make any and all decisions solely in its best interest without
regard to or consideration of the interests of the Members.

46  Resignation. A Manager may resign as Manager at any time on notice to the
Company. The resignation of a Manager shall take effect upon receipt of such notice or at any
later time specified in such notice. The resignation of a Manager who is also a Member shall not
affect the Manager’s rights as a Member and shall not constitute a withdrawal of a Member.

47  Removal. A Manager may be removed or replaced with or without cause by the
vote of the Members, entitled to vote thereon, in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof. The
removal of a Manager who is also a Member as a Manager shall not affect the Manager’s rights
as a Member and shall not constitute a withdrawal of such Member.
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48  Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring for any reason on the Board of Managers may
be filled by the affirmative vote of the Members pursuant to Section 3.7. A Manager elected to
fill a vacancy on the Board of Managers shall be elected for the unexpired term of the Manager’s
predecessor in office and shall hold office until the expiration of such term and until the
Manager’s successor has been elected and qualified. A Manager chosen to fill a position
resulting from an increase in the number of Managers shall hold office until the next annual
meeting of Members and until a successor has been elected and qualified.

49  Salaries. The salaries and other compensation of the Managers shall be fixed
from time to time by the vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof. No
Manager shall be prevented from receiving such a salary or other compensation because such
Manager is also a Member.

410 Officers.

(@) The Board of Managers may designate one or more individuals, who may
or may not be Members or Managers, as officers of the Company, who shall have such titles and
exercise and perform such powers and duties as shall be assigned to them from time to time by
the Board of Managers. Any officer may be removed by action of the Board of Managers at any
time, with or without cause. Each officer shall hold office until his or her successor is elected
and qualified. Any number of offices may be held by the same individual. The salaries and
other compensation of the officers shall be fixed by the Board of Managers.

(b) In the case of the absence or illness of any officer of the Company, or for
any other reason that the Board of Managers may deem sufficient, the Managers may delegate
and assign, for the time being, the powers and duties of any officer to any other officer or to any
Manager.

411 Extraordinary Transactions. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement,
approval of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7 hereof, shall be necessary for the
consummation of any of the following events:

(@) the transfer by a Member of any Membership Units;
(b)  the dissolution of the Company as provided in Section 8.1(a);

(c)  the dissolution of the Company within ninety (90) days following the
bankruptcy, death, dissolution, incapacity or withdrawal of any Member or the occurrence of any
other event that terminates the continued membership of any Member, as provided in
Section 8.1(b);

(d)  any Terminating Capital Transaction,

(e)  the merger, consolidation or combination of the Company with any other
Person,
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f the incurrence of indebtedness by the Company;

(g) the sale, exchange, lease, pledge, or granting of a security interest in any
of the assets of the Company other than in the ordinary course of its business;

(h)  the admission of an additional Member;
(1) any change in the number of the Managers of the Company;

() any change in the compensation of any Manager or of any Member (or
their Affiliates); or

(k)  the purchase of Membership Units by the Company pursuant to
Section 7.2.

412 Amendments. This Agreement and the Articles of Organization may be amended
from time to time in writing in accordance with the following:

(@) upon a vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7,

(b) if the amendment is an amendment of Schedule A or Schedule B hereto,
whenever required by a provision of this Agreement; or

(c) if the amendment is an amendment of the Articles of Organization of a
type set forth in Section 213(b) of the Act, by the Board of Managers.

ARTICLEV

DISTRIBUTIONS

5.1  Ownership of Membership Units. Each Member shall own Membership Units in
the amounts set forth for such Member in Schedule A and shall have a Percentage Interest in the
Company as set forth in Schedule A. Schedule A and/or Schedule B shall be amended from time
to time by the Board of Managers to the extent necessary to accurately reflect redemptions, , the
issuance of additional Membership Units, the admission of additional Members, or similar events
having an effect on any item set forth therein. .

5.2  Loans by Members. A Member may, but is not obligated to, loan or cause to be
loaned to the Company such additional sums as the Members deem appropriate and necessary for
the conduct of the Company’s business; provided, however, that such loan, and the terms and
conditions thereof, is approved by the vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7
hereof.
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5.3  Distributions. Except as otherwise provided in Article VI, Distributions shall be
made at such times and in such amounts as may be determined solely by the Board of Managers,
to the Members, pro rata in accordance with their Percentage Interests.

5.4  Distributions Upon Liquidation. Proceeds from a Terminating Capital
Transaction and any other cash received or reductions in reserves made after commencement of
the liquidation of the Company shall be distributed to the Members in accordance with
Article VIII.

ARTICLE VI

TAXES

6.1  Preparation of Tax Returns. The Managers shall arrange for the preparation and
timely filing of all returns of Company income, gains, deductions, losses and other items
required of the Company for federal and state income tax purposes and shall use all reasonable
efforts to furnish, within ninety (90) days of the close of each taxable year, the tax information
reasonably required by Members for federal and state income tax reporting purposes.

6.2  Withholding. Each Member hereby authorizes the Company to
withhold from or pay on behalf of or with respect to such Member any amount of federal, state,
local, or foreign taxes that the Company is required to withhold or pay with respect to any
amount distributable or allocable to such Member pursuant to this Agreement, including, without
limitation, any taxes required to be withheld or paid by the Company pursuant to Sections 1441,
1442, 1445, or 1446 of the Code. Any amount paid on behalf of or with respect to a Member
shall constitute a loan by the Company to such Member, which loan shall be repaid by such
Member within fifteen (15) days after notice from the Company that such payment must be
made.

ARTICLE VII

TRANSFERS OF MEMBERSHIP UNITS

7.1  Transfers in General. The sale, transfer, assignment, pledge or other disposition
of any interest in any Membership Unit (whether with or without consideration and whether
voluntarily or involuntarily or by operation of law), directly or indirectly, to another Person is
referred to herein as a “Transfer” and to take such action is referred to herein as to “Transfer.”
No Member shall Transfer any Membership Units (or any interest in any Membership Units),
unless such Transfer is made (a) to a Permitted Transferee or (b) in compliance with the
provisions of Section 7.1 and Section 7.2. In no event, shall any Transfer of Membership Units
(other than to a Permitted Transferee or in a sale of the entire Company) pursuant to this
Article VII be made by any Member for any consideration other than cash payable upon
consummation of such Transfer or in installments over time.
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7.2 Right of First Refusal.

(@) Notice of Proposed Transfer. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth
in this Article V11, at least forty-five (45) days prior to the proposed Transfer of any Membership
Units held by any Member, the transferring Member (the “Transferring Holder™) shall deliver a
written notice (the “Offer Notice™) to the Company and each of the Members. The Offer Notice
shall disclose in reasonable detail the identity of the prospective transferee(s), the number of
Membership Units contemplated to be transferred (the “Available Units™), the cash price for the
Membership Units and the other terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer. The
Transferring Holder shall not consummate such proposed Transfer until at least forty-five (45)
days after the delivery of the Offer Notice, unless the parties to the Transfer have been finally
determined pursuant to this Section 7.2 prior to the expiration of such 45-day period (the date of
the first to occur of (x) the expiration of such 45-day period after delivery of the Offer Notice or
(y) such final determination is referred to herein as the “Authorization Date™).

(b) Exercise of Right of First Refusal. The Company shall have ten (10) days
from receipt of the Offer Notice to accept the Available Units offered in the Offer Notice in full
or in part. To the extent that the Company has not agreed to purchase all of the Available Units,
the Company shall notify each Member that such Member is entitled to purchase a portion of the
remaining Available Units by delivering written notice (the “Available Unit Purchase Notice™) to
the Members and the Transferring Holder within fifteen (15) days following delivery of the Offer
Notice setting forth the maximum number of the remaining Available Units which such
Members may purchase. The Members shall have thirty (30) days after delivery of the Available
Unit Purchase Notice to elect, in writing, to purchase remaining Available Units. Remaining
Available Units shall first be allocated to each such Member in an amount equal to the lesser of
(A) the maximum amount specified by each such Member in such Members Available Unit
Purchase Notice response and (B) such Member’s pro rata share of all Membership Units held by
all such Members. If all of the remaining Available Units offered to such Members are not fully
subscribed by such Members, the un-subscribed Available Units shall be allocated to the
Members purchasing their pro rata share and indicating in their response to the Available Unit
Purchase Notice a desire to acquire any Available Units that are available because of under-
subscription and if such Members collectively indicate an interest in acquiring additional
Available Units in an amount in excess of the aggregate amount of Available Units remaining,
such remaining Available Units will be allocated among such Members pro rata in accordance
with their respective holdings of Membership Units.

(c) Closing of Transfer to Company and/or Members. If the Company and
the Members have elected to purchase all of the remaining Available Units hereunder, the
Transfer of such Available Units to the Company and the accepting Members shall be
consummated as soon as practical after the delivery of the election notice(s) to the Transferring
Holder, but in any event within fifteen (15) days after the Authorization Date.

(d)  Transferring Holder’s Right to Transfer. If the Company and the
Members do not elect, in the aggregate, to purchase all of the Available Units offered in the
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Offered Notice from the Transferring Holder, the Transferring Holder shall have the right, within
the ninety (90) days following the Authorization Date, to Transfer all of such Available Units to
the transferee(s) specified in the Offer Notice in the amounts specified in the Offer Notice at a
price not less than the price per unit specified in the Offer Notice and on other terms no more
favorable to the transferee(s) thereof than specified in the Offer Notice.

(e) Re-offer. Any Available Units not so Transferred within such 90-day
period shall be reoffered to the Company and the Members pursuant to this Section 7.2 prior to
any subsequent Transfer.

(f) Non-applicability. The provisions of this Section 7.2 shall not apply to a
Transfer made to a Permitted Transferee or a Transfer where the consideration is not entirely
cash.

7.3 Drag-Along Rights. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the holders
of more than 50% of the Company’s Membership Units (the “Triggering Holder™) may sell all
of their Membership Units to an unaffiliated third party as part of a sale of all equity of the
Company to the third party. If the Triggering Holder proposes to sell all of his, her or its
Membership Units to an unaffiliated third party pursuant to a bona fide sale in a single
transaction or series of related transactions, the Triggering Holder shall have the right to include
the other Members® Membership Units in the sale (the “Drag-Along”) by providing the other
Members with written notice containing the terms of the Drag-Along (the “Drag-Along
Notice™). Upon receipt of the Drag-Along Notice, the other Members shall take all necessary and
desirable actions in connection with the consummation of the Drag-Along in order to effectively
vest good title, right and interest, free and clear of all liens, claims, encumbrances and
restrictions of any kind, in such third party on the same terms and conditions and for the same
consideration per Membership Unit as is applicable to the Triggering Holder within not more
than thirty (30) days following the Drag-Along Notice. Each other Member will bear his pro rata
share of the costs and expenses incurred in connection with such sale to the extent such costs and
expenses are not paid by the third party.

7.4  Effect of Assignment.

(@)  Termination of Rights. Any Member who shall assign any Membership
Units or other interest in the Company shall cease to be a Member with respect to such
Membership Units or other interest and shall no longer have any rights or privileges of a Member
with respect to such Membership Units or other interest. A Transfer shall not otherwise
eliminate the Member's entitlement to any rights associated with the Member’s remaining
interest and shall not cause the Member to be released from any liability to the Company or any
other Person solely as a result of the Transfer.

(b) Deemed Agreement. Any Person who acquires in any manner whatsoever
any Membership Units or other interest in the Company, irrespective of whether such Person has
accepted and adopted in writing the terms and provisions of this Agreement, shall be deemed by
the acceptance of the benefits of the acquisition thereof and any agreement pursuant to which the
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Membership Units were acquired, as applicable, to have agreed to be subject to and bound by all
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement that any predecessor in such Membership Units or
other interest in the Company of such Person was subject to or by which such predecessor was
bound.

(c)  Assignee’s Rights. A Transfer of Membership Units permitted hereunder
shall be effective as of the date of assignment and compliance with the conditions to such
Transfer and such Transfer shall be shown on the books and records of the Company. Unless
and until an assignee becomes a Substituted Member pursuant to Section 7.6, the Assignee shall
not be entitled to any of the rights or privileges granted to a Member hereunder or under
applicable law, other than the rights and privileges specifically granted to Assignees pursuant to
this Agreement.

7.5 Additional Restrictions on Transfer.

(@) Restrictions. Membership Units are transferable only pursuant to
(i) public offerings registered under the Securities Act, (ii) Rule 144 or Rule 144A of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (or any similar rules then in force) if such rule is available,
(iii) an exemption under applicable securities law, and (iv) other legally available means of
transfer permitted by this Agreement.

(b)  Execution of Counterpart. Each transferee of Membership Units or other
interests in the Company shall, as a condition prior to such Transfer, execute and deliver to the
Company an Adoption Agreement in the form of Exhibit B pursuant to which such Transferee
shall agree to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement.

(c) Notice. In connection with the Transfer of any Membership Units, the
holder of such Membership Units will deliver written notice to the Company describing in
reasonable detail the Transfer or proposed Transfer.

(d) Legal Opinion. No Transfer of Membership Units or any other interest in
the Company may be made unless in the opinion of counsel, satisfactory in form and substance
to the Board of Managers (which opinion may be waived by the Board of Managers), such
Transfer would not violate any federal securities laws or any state or provincial securities or
“blue sky” laws (including any investor suitability standards) applicable to the Company or the
interest to be Transferred, or cause the Company to be required to register as an “Investment
Company™ under the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Such opinion of
counsel shall be delivered in writing to the Company prior to the date of the Transfer.

7.6 Assignees; Substituted Members.

(@) Unless the assignee of any Membership Unit is admitted as a Substituted
Member as provided in Section 7.6(b) (or is the Company or another Member), (i) the assignee
shall only have only the rights of the transferring Member in the Company income, gain, loss,
deductions and distributions rights, (ii) the assignee shall have no right to vote on Company
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matters, inspect Company books and records or otherwise participate in Company affairs, and
(iii) the interest of the assignee shall be disregarded for purposes of determining whether
Members owning the required Membership Units have voted on any matter requiring a vote of
the Members.

(b)  An assignee of the whole or any portion of the transferring Member’s
Membership Units, validly assigned pursuant to this Article VII, may become a “Substituted
Member” in the place of the transferring Member, to the extent of the Membership Units validly
transferred, if all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(i) A fully executed and acknowledged written instrument of
assignment has been filed with the Company which sets forth the intention of the
transferring Member that the assignee become a Substituted Member in its place, to the
extent of the Membership Units assigned,;

(i) The assignee executes and acknowledges an Adoption
Agreement and such other instruments, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to
the Board of Managers, as are reasonably necessary or desirable to effectuate the
admission and to confirm the agreement of the assignee to be bound by all the terms and
provisions of this Agreement with respect to the Membership Units acquired; and

(ili)  The Board of Managers approves the admission of the
assignee as a Substituted Member, provided, that no such approval shall be required to admit any
assignee or transferee of any Person that acquired Membership Units pursuant to a transfer
permitted by Article VII.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, both the
Company and the Board of Managers will be entitled to treat the transferring Member as its
absolute owner in all respects, and will incur no liability for Distributions made in good faith to
that Member, until a written assignment that conforms to the requirements of this Article V11 has
been received by the Company and accepted by the Board of Managers.

7.7 Amendment of Schedule. As soon as reasonably practicable following a
transaction described in this Article VI, the Board of Managers will, without the need for the
consent of the Members, amend Schedule A to reflect the names of the Members, the number of
Membership Units held and the Percentage Interests of the Members immediately after the
transaction. Such revised Schedule A shall replace in its entirety the Schedule A in effect
immediately prior to the transaction. Upon the request of a Member, the Board of Managers will
distribute the then-current Schedule A to the requesting Member.

7.8 Involuntary Transfer.

(@  Any Person who becomes the holder or possessor of any Membership Unit
of the Company by virtue of any judicial process, attachment, bankruptcy, receivership,
execution, or judicial sale, including, without limitation, any person to whom such Membership
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Unit shall have been transferred pursuant to a court order in a matrimonial action (regardless of
whether such Membership Unit be deemed a voluntary or involuntary transfer), shall
immediately offer all of such Membership Units to the Company whenever requested by the
Company, at a purchase price equal to the then book value per Membership Unit as shown on the
financial statements of the Company multiplied by the total number of Membership Units held
by such Person.

(b) Any sale under this Section 7.8 shall be closed at the office of the
Company at 10:00 a.m. on the thirtieth (30th) day following the date of the Company’s request
described above in Section 7.8(a), or at such other time and place as shall be mutually agreeable
to the parties to such closing. At such closing, the purchase price shall be paid in full in cash or
by certified check.

7.9  Legend.

In the event that certificated Membership Units are issued, such certificated
Membership Units will bear the following legend:

“THE UNITS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE “ACT"), OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS (“STATE ACTS”) AND MAY NOT BE SOLD, ASSIGNED,
PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THE
ABSENCE OF AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT
UNDER THE ACT OR STATE ACTS OR AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION THEREUNDER. THE TRANSFER OF THE UNITS
REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE IS SUBJECT TO THE
CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN AN OPERATING AGREEMENT AS
AMENDED AND MODIFIED FROM TIME TO TIME, GOVERNING
THE ISSUER (THE “COMPANY™), BY AND AMONG ITS
MEMBERS (THE “LLC AGREEMENT”), A COPY OF WHICH
SHALL BE FURNISHED UPON REQUEST.”

To the extent applicable, certificated Membership Units may also bear a legend in
substantially the following form:

“THE UNITS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY ALSO
BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH IN THE
LLC AGREEMENT AND/OR A SEPARATE AGREEMENT WITH
THE INITIAL HOLDER, A COPY OF WHICH SHALL BE
FURNISHED BY THE COMPANY UPON WRITTEN REQUEST AND
WITHOUT CHARGE.”

If a Member holding certificated Membership Units delivers to the Company an opinion
of counsel, satisfactory in form and substance to the Board of Managers (which opinion may be
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waived by the Board of Managers), that no subsequent Transfer of such Membership Units will
require registration under the Securities Act, the Company will promptly upon such
contemplated Transfer deliver new certificated Membership Units which do not bear the portion
of the restrictive legend relating to the Securities Act set forth in this Section 7.10.

7.10 Transfer Fees and Expenses. The transferor and transferee of any Membership
Units or other interest in the Company shall be jointly and severally obligated to reimburse the
Company for all reasonable expenses (including attorneys” fees and expenses) of any Transfer or
proposed Transfer, whether or not consummated.

7.11 Resignation; Void Assignment. No Members shall have the right to resign or
withdraw as a Member. In the event of any Transfer in contravention of this Agreement, the
purported transferee shall have no right to any profits, losses or Distributions of the Company or
any other rights of a holder.

ARTICLE VIII

DISSOLUTION
8.1 Dissolution.

(a) The Company shall be dissolved and its affairs shall be wound up upon
the affirmative vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7.

(b) In the event of the bankruptcy, death, dissolution, or incapacity of any
Member or the occurrence of any other event that terminates the continued membership of any
Member, the remaining Members shall have the right to continue the Company and the Company
shall continue, unless within ninety (90) days after such event, the remaining Members vote in
accordance with Section 3.7 to dissolve the Company.

8.2  Winding Up and Liquidation.

(@) Upon the occurrence of an event set forth in Section 8.1(a) (a “Liquidating
Event™), the Company shall continue solely for the purposes of winding up its affairs in an
orderly manner, liquidating its assets, and satisfying the claims of its creditors and Members. No
Member shall take any action that is inconsistent with, or not necessary to, or appropriate for, the
winding up of the Company’s business and affairs. The Managers or, in the event there are no
remaining Managers, any Person elected by a majority in interest of the Members (the Managers
or such other Person being referred to herein as the “Liquidator™), shall be responsible for
overseeing the winding up and dissolution of the Company and shall take full account of the
Company’s liabilities and property and the Company property shall be liquidated as promptly as
is consistent with obtaining the fair value thereof, and the proceeds therefrom shall be applied
and distributed in the following order:
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(i) First, to the payment and discharge of all of the Company’s debts
and liabilities to its creditors, including Members who are creditors;

(i)  Second, to Members and former Members in satisfaction of
liabilities for distributions under Section 507 or 509 of the Act; and

(ili)  The balance, if any, to the Members in accordance with their
Percentage Interests.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.2(a) hereof which require
liquidation of the assets of the Company, but subject to the order of priorities set forth therein, if
prior to or upon dissolution of the Company, the Liquidator determines that an immediate sale of
part or all of the Company’s assets would be impractical or would cause undue loss to the
Members, the Liquidator may, in its sole and absolute discretion, defer for a reasonable time the
liquidation of any assets except those necessary to satisfy liabilities of the Company (including
those to Members as creditors) and/or distribute to the Members, in lieu of cash, as tenants in
common and in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.2(a) hereof, undivided interests in
such Company assets as the Liquidator deems not suitable for liquidation. Any such
distributions in kind shall be made only if, in the good faith judgment of the Liquidator, such
distributions in kind are in the best interest of the Members, and shall be subject to such
conditions relating to the disposition and management of such properties as the Liquidator deems
reasonable and equitable and to any agreements governing the operation of such properties at
such time. The Liquidator shall determine the fair market value of any property distributed in
kind using such reasonable method of valuation as it may adopt.

(c) In the discretion of the Liquidator, a pro-rata portion of the distributions
that would otherwise be made to the Members pursuant to this Article V11l may be:

(i) distributed to a trust established for the benefit of the Members for
the purposes of liquidating Company assets, collecting amounts owed to the Company, and
paying any contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Company or the Members
arising out of or in connection with the Company. The assets of any such trust shall be
distributed to the Members from time to time, in the reasonable discretion of the Liquidator, in
the same proportions as the amount distributed to such trust by the Company would otherwise
have been distributed to the Members pursuant to this Agreement; or

(i)  withheld or escrowed to provide a reasonable reserve for Company
liabilities (contingent or otherwise) and to reflect the unrealized portion of any installment
obligations owed to the Company, provided, that such withheld or escrowed amounts shall be
distributed to the Members in the manner and order of priority set forth in Section 8.2(a) as soon
as practicable.

8.3  Articles of Dissolution. Within ninety (90) days following the dissolution and the
commencement of winding up of the Company, or at any other time there are no Members,
articles of dissolution shall be filed with the New York Department of State pursuant to the Act.
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8.4  Rights of Members. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each
Member shall look solely to the assets of the Company and shall have no right or power to
demand or receive property other than cash from the Company. Except as otherwise provided in
this Agreement, no Member shall have priority over any other Member as to the distribution
upon liquidation of the Company.

ARTICLE IX

INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Limitation of Liability. Except as otherwise required by the Act, no Manager or
officer, if any, shall be liable to the Company or any other Member for any loss or damage
sustained by the Company or any Member unless such Manager or officer has failed to comply
with Section 4.2 or 4.10, as the case may be, with respect to the actions or occurrences giving
rise to such loss or damage.

9.2 Indemnification. To the maximum extent permitted under the Act, the Company
shall indemnify and hold harmless each Manager and officer, if any, from and against all claims
and demands unless such Manager and officer, if any, has acted (a) in bad faith, (b) with
deliberate dishonesty or (c) for personal financial profit or other advantage to which he or she is
not legally entitled, with respect to the actions or occurrences giving rise to such claims and
demands.

9.3  Reimbursement. The Company shall promptly reimburse (and/or advance to the
extent reasonably required) each Manager and officer, if any, for reasonable legal or other
expenses (as incurred) of such Manager or officer, in connection with investigating, preparing to
defend or defending any claim, lawsuit or other proceeding relating to any claim or demand for
which such person may be indemnified pursuant to Section 9.2, provided, that if it is finally
judicially determined that such person is not entitled to the indemnification provided by Section
9.2, then such person shall promptly reimburse the Company for any reimbursed or advanced
expense.

ARTICLE X

GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1 Notices. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or required by law, any
notice, demand or other communication required or permitted to be given pursuant to this
Agreement shall have been sufficiently given for all purposes if (a) delivered personally to the
Person or to an executive officer of the Person to whom such notice, demand or other
communication is directed or (b) sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the
Person at his, her or its address set forth in this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, any such notice shall be deemed to be given three business days after it was mailed.
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10.2 Entire Agreement/Amendments. This Agreement and the Articles of Organization
contain the entire agreement among the Members with respect to the subject matter hereof. No
amendment of this Agreement or the Articles of Organization shall be effective unless made in
accordance with Section 4.12 hereof.

10.3 Waiver. No failure of a Member to exercise, and no delay by a Member in
exercising, any right or remedy under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of such right or
remedy. No waiver by a Member of any such right or remedy under this Agreement shall be
effective unless made in a writing duly executed by all Members and specifically referring to
each such right or remedy being waived.

10.4 Severability. If any of the terms of this Agreement are declared to be illegal or
unenforceable by any court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such term or terms shall be null
and void and shall be deemed deleted from this Agreement with respect to the jurisdiction of that
court or tribunal; provided, however, that all the remaining terms hereof shall remain in full force
and effect.

10.5 Binding Effect and Benefit. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of all Members, and each of the permitted successors and assignees of the Members.
No party may assign rights or delegate obligations hereunder except pursuant to the provisions
hereof. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to benefit any person not a party hereto.

10.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

10.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and interpreted and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without regard to principles of
conflict of laws.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
first written above.

COMPANY:

ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC

/)
.;‘/ ’//.\J
( ey

J. Garrett Green™
ger

MEMBER:

By:

( fah A
J. Gay;téreenff“
Y




SCHEDULE A

Stakeholders Capital Contribution Number of Percentage
Membership Interest
Units
The Founder $1,050,000 48,950,000 91%

The Members $1,070,000 4,955,471 9%



Name of Member
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SCHEDULE B

VALUE OF CONTRIBUTED PROPERTY

Property Contributed Asset Value of Adjusted Basis of

Contributed Contributed
Property Property
$ $

EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A

OPERATING PROCEDURES

ARTICLE |

Members” Action

Section 1. Meetings. Meetings of the Members, except as otherwise required by
law, may be called to be held at the principal business office of the Company or elsewhere at any
time by the Manager, and shall be called by the Board of Managers at the request in writing of
the Members holding not less than 51% of the Membership Units entitled to vote. Such call shall
state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting. Unless all of the Members entitled to
vote are present at the meeting in person or by telephone and not by proxy, business transacted at
a meeting of Members shall be confined to the objects stated in the call and matters germane
thereto.

Section 2. Notice of Members’ Meetings. Written notice of every meeting of
Members shall be given in the manner required by law not less than ten (10) nor more than sixty
(60) days before the date of the meeting to each Member entitled to vote at the meeting. If
mailed, such notice is given when deposited in the United States Mail, with postage thereon
prepaid, directed to the Member at the Member’s address as it appears in the records of the
Company, or if the Member shall have filed with the Company a written request that notices to
the Member be mailed to some other address, then directed to such other address. The notice
shall state the purpose or purposes of the meeting, the place, date and hour of the meeting and,
shall indicate that it is being issued by or at the direction of the Person or Persons calling the
meeting.

Section 3. Waiver of Notice. Notice of a Members’ meeting need not be given to
any Member who submits a signed waiver of notice, in person or by proxy, whether before or
after the meeting. The attendance of any Member at a Members® meeting, in person or by proxy,
without protesting prior to the conclusion of the meeting the lack of notice of such meeting shall
constitute a waiver of notice by such Member.

Section 4. Quorum. At every meeting of the Members, except as otherwise
provided by law or these operating procedures, a quorum must be present for the transaction of
business and a quorum shall consist of the Members holding not less than 80% of all
Membership Units entitled to vote present either in person or by proxy. When a quorum is once
present to organize a meeting, it is not broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any Members.

Section 5. Adjournments. The Members who are present in person or by proxy at
any meeting of Members, whether or not they constitute a quorum, shall have the power by a
vote of not less than a majority of all Membership Units entitled to vote to adjourn the meeting
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from time to time. Subject to any notice required by law, at any adjourned meeting at which a
quorum is present any business may be transacted which might have been transacted on the
original date of the meeting. Notice of an adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and
place of the adjourned meeting are announced at the original meeting.

Section 6. Proxies. All questions that shall come before a meeting shall be
decided by the vote of the Members required by Section 3.7 of the Agreement. A Member may
vote either in person or by written proxy signed by the Member or by a duly authorized attorney-
in-fact and delivered to the Company. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11)
months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy shall be
revocable at the pleasure of the Member executing it or the Member’s personal representatives,
unless it is entitled “irrevocable proxy™, in which event its revocability shall be determined by
the law of the State of New York in effect at the time.

Section 7. Meetings by Conference Telephone. Any one or more Members may
participate in a meeting of such Members by means of a conference telephone or similar
communications equipment by means of which all persons participate in the meeting can hear
each other. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Section 8. Action By Members Without A Meeting.

(a) Whenever Members are required or permitted to take any action by
vote, such action may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a
consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the Members
who hold the voting interests having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be
necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all of the Members entitled to
vote therein were present and voted and shall be delivered to the Company.

(b) Every written consent shall bear the date of signature of each
Member who signs the consent, and no written consent shall be effective to take the action
referred to therein unless written consents signed by a sufficient number of Members to take the
action are delivered to the office of the Company, its principal place of business or a Manager,
employee or agent of the Company having custody of the records of the Company. Delivery
made to such office, principal place of business or Manager, employee or agent shall be by hand
or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

(c) Prompt notice of the taking of any action without a meeting by less
than unanimous written consent shall be given to those Members who have not consented in
writing but who would have been entitled to vote thereon had such action been taken at a
meeting.
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ARTICLE Il
Managers’ Action

Section 1. Quorum. At all meetings of the Board of Managers, except as
otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Organization or these operating procedures, a quorum
shall be required for the transaction of business and shall consist of a majority of the Managers.

Section 2. Procedure. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at
every meeting of the Board of Managers may be determined by the Managers.

Section 3. Voting. Except as otherwise provided by law, Articles of Organization
or these operating procedures, all questions that shall come before a meeting of the Board of
Managers shall be decided by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Managers.

Section 4. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be
taken by a vote of the Managers may be taken without a vote if the Managers consent thereto in
writing and the writing is filed with the records of the Company.

Section 5. Proxies. The Managers shall not be permitted to participate in
meetings of the Managers by means of a proxy.




EXHIBIT B

ADOPTION AGREEMENT

THIS ADOPTION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of the  day of
.20, by and between ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC (the “Company”) and
(the “Transferee™).

WHEREAS, a Member of the Company is transferring certain Membership Units in the
Company to the Transferee; and

WHEREAS, the Transferee desires to become a Member of the Company with respect to
such transferred Membership Units.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Transferee hereby agree as follows:

1. By executing this Agreement, the Transferee hereby adopts, and agrees to be
bound by that certain Third Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of the Company dated
as of August 20, 2018 (the “Operating Agreement”).

2. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Transferee shall be deemed to be a
Member of the Company, as defined in the Operating Agreement, and shall have all of the rights,
benefits, duties and obligations thereof.

3. This Agreement is expressly made for the benefit of the Company and of each of

its past, current and future Members, and each such Member shall be deemed to be a third party
beneficiary hereof.

[the remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Transferee have executed this
Agreement as of the date first written above.

COMPANY:

ONE ROQ SPIRITS LLC

P
_‘,"/ / —\I
,_r'h‘. -

Nz\je Garrett Green
Managing Member; President

TRANSFEREE:




